
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 11, 2023 
Amended 12/11/2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – DECEMBER 11, 2023 

 
BOS Board Room                             Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. Board of Supervisors Service Plaques – Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, & Oris Christian 
 

2. RC Fair Association Report – Donna Meade    
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of November 13, 2023  
 

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 
 



Agenda    Board of Supervisors   December 11, 2023 
Amended 12/11/2023 

Russell County Page 2 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...B-3 

RC Highway & Safety Commission 

Linda Cross     2-Year Term December 31, 2023 

Southwest Virginia EMS Council 

Maxie Skeen   4-Year Term December 31, 2023 

DSS & Community Policy Management Team 

Rebecca Dye   4-Year Term December 31, 2023 

Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 

Richard Lockridge  4-Year Term December 31, 2023 
Nelson “Tony” Dodi 4-Year Term December 31, 2023 
Donnie Christian  4-Year Term December 31, 2023 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes)  

CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

REPORTS 

1. VACo Preliminary Legislative Program 2024…..…………………………………..C-1 

2. VDOT November 2023 Report…………………………………………………………C-2 

REQUESTS 

3. RC General Election – Abstract of Votes – November 7, 2023..………………...C-3 

4. RC BOS & RC IDA Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Performance
Agreement (TROF) - $146,000…………………………………………………………C-4 

5. DHCD Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 (Belfast Waterline
Extension, Phase II) Administrative & Conditional Closeout……………………C-5 

6. VDOT Dante Depot Project – Certificate of Substantial Completion…………...C-6 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 11, 2023 
Amended 12/11/2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 3 
 

7. VDOT No-Cost Rural Addition Resolution Rte. 836 Extension -                                       
Culberson Lane…………………………………………………………………………..C-7 
 

8. RC School Board Reversion Funds Appropriation & Reallocation                             
concerning the 2% Employee Salary by the General Assembly…...…………...C-8  
 

9. RC DSS Board Appropriation of Funds concerning the 2% Employee                                
Salary by the General Assembly……………………………………………………...C-9 
 

10. DCJS Law Enforcement Equipment Grant - $542,000 ($61,000 Increase)…….C-10 
 

11. RC Sheriff, Lebanon & Honaker Police “Shop With A Cop” Donation………...C-11  
 

12. Library of Virginia Revised State Grant-In-Aid FY 2024 - $128,394…………….C-12 
 

13. VDEM Emergency Management Performance Grant - $7,500…………………...C-13   
 

14. RC Emergency Burn Ban Resolution Cancellation………………………….…….C-14 
 

15. Potesta Master Agreement for Engineers & Environmental Services                         
Contract Six-Month Extension………………………………………………………...C-15 
 

16. VDH & RC BOS Service Agreement – RC Health Department…………………...C-16 
 

17. RC Operational Medical Director (OMD) Contract for Services………………....C-17 
 

18. VDOT Resolution – Russell County Coal Haul Road Plan – Rte. 615 Gravel                      
Lick Road Improvements - $100,000…………………………………………………C-18 
 

19. RC Planning Commission – CL Dale Construction Review……………………...C-19 
 

20. Honaker & Castlewood Canneries Closure Date…………………………………..C-20 
 

21. County December Holiday Payroll & Schedule….………………………………...C-21 
 

22.  RC BOS January 2024 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………C-22 
 

23. VDOT Dante ATV Route Study – T&L Engineering - $4,990……………………..C-23 
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 11, 2023 
Amended 12/11/2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 4 
 

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA ………...…………………………………………………………………………..E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………....F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...K  
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..M 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….N   



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 12/11/23      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations  
 
1.  Board of Supervisors Service Plaques – Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, & Oris Christian 

 
2. RC Fair Association Report – Donna Meade    

 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 12/11/23       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of November 13, 2023 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 13, 2023 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, November 
13, 2023 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 

Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk Nick 
Compton, County Attorney 

Absent: 

None 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

Presentations 

Stacy Martin, Vet Fest thanked the Board for all the support of Vet Fest and presented them with a 
Flag. 

New Business 



APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 02, 2023 MINUTES 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the October 02, 2023 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve general county expenditures in the amount of $1,436,583.70 including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

Committee Appointments 

CATHERINE PRATT AND JASON GULLET RE-APPOINTED TO THE DANTE COMMUNITY 
CENTER BOARD 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Catherine Pratt and Jason Gullet to the Dante Community Center Board for (2) two-year 
terms, said terms ending October 12, 2025. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

GREG STOOTS APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Greg Stoots to the Russell County Planning Commission for a (4) four-year term, said term 
ending October 01, 2027. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 



JIM EATON RE-APPOINTED TO THE CPEDC 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to re-appoint James Eaton, Jr. to the Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission for a 
(1) one year term, said term ending October 12, 2024. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  David Eaton 

Citizen’ Comment 

The Chair opened citizens’ comment. 

 The following citizens spoke in opposition to the proposed private landfill at the Moss III site. 

Several different issues were mentioned including leakage, air quality, pollution impacting the Clinch 
River, decrease in property values, decrease in tourism, etc.  They also asked that the BOS have a 
more open and transparent dialog concerning this project and asked that they vote NO when asked to 
approve this landfill. 

Amy Branson 
Josh Burgess 
Billy Johnson 
Gary Hughes 
Elijah Cordle 
Angie McGlothlin 
Jared Ring 
Branyan Musick 
Darnis Salyer 
Kristen Caudill 
Shelia Ball 
Darryl Runfrey 
Patricia Lester 
McClannahan 
Kerry McCormick 
Donna Fields 
Curtis Salyers 
Tammy Garrett 
Jim Lyttle 
David Ball 

Stanley Keen addressed the Board concerning a road safety issue in the Lynn Springs area of Route 
632. 

The Chair closed citizens’ comment. 



County Administrator Reports and Requests 

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL TURKEY DONATIONS 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the annual holiday turkey certificates for the community and county employees. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A BURN BAN RESOLUTION FOR RUSSELL COUNTY 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Burn Ban Resolution for Russell County effective immediately. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL REGISTRAR AND ELECTORAL BOARD SALARIES FOR 2023/2024 

Motion made Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the 2023/2024 Authorized General Registrar & Local Electoral Board Member Salaries for 
Russell County. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A VDEM PSAP STAFFING RECOGNITION GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,000 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate a VDEM PSAP Staffing Recognition Grant in the amount of $30,000. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Carl 
Rhea 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A $5000 VA911- FY24 DATA MAIN. & DATA TRANSFER GRANT 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate a VA 911 Services Board – FY 24 Data Maintenance & Data Transfer Grant in 
the amount of $5000. 



The vote was: 
Aye: Oris Christian, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT SPEED STUDY FOR RTE. 932, LYNN SPRING ROAD 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT speed study for Rte. 632, Lynn Springs Road. 
The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Lou 
Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE RC COURTHOUSE SKANSKA PROJECT MGMT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County Courthouse Skanska Project Management Services Agreement. 

The vote was: 
Aye: Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR A HUMAN RESOURCE & PAYROLL POSITION FOR THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
advertise for a Human Resource & Payroll position for the County Administrator’s office. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  Lou Wallace 

APPROVAL OF DANTE DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION COMPREHENSIVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000. 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve a DHCD CDBG Planning Grant – Dante Downtown Revitalization Comprehensive 
Community Development in the amount of $60,000. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 



APPROVAL OF A DEQ LITTER PREVENTION & RECYCLING PROGRAM GRANT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $25,440 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate the DEQ Litter Prevention & Recycling Program Grant in the amount of 
$25,440. 

The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENT PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,156.81 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a National Opioid Settlement Payment in the amount of $15,156.81. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE RC LANDFILL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - TRC ENGINEERS, INC 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County Landfill Professional Services – TRC Engineers, Inc. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO SET THE NEXT BOARD MEETING FOR DECEMBER 11, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to set the Board of Supervisors meeting for Monday, December 11, 2023 at 6:00 pm. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris 
Christian 
Nay:  None 

__________________________                       ______________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                Chairperson 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 12/11/23      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s November 2023 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s November 2023 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s November 2023 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• November 2023 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 12/11/23        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
 

1. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...B-3 
 

RC Highway & Safety Commission 
 

Linda Cross     2-Year Term           December 31, 2023 
 

Southwest Virginia EMS Council  
 
 Maxie Skeen    4-Year Term    December 31, 2023 
  
 Community Policy Management Team 
 
 Rebecca Dye    4-Year Term    December 31, 2023 
 
 Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
 Richard Lockridge   4-Year Term    December 31, 2023 
 Nelson “Tony” Dodi   4-Year Term    December 31, 2023 
 Donnie Christian   4-Year Term    December 31, 2023 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation – Informational Only. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Board Discretion.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Various   



























 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-21 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 12/11/23         6:00 PM 
  

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 

The County Administrator Reports & Request for December 2023: 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. VACo Preliminary Legislative Program 2024…..…………………………………..C-1 
 

2. VDOT November 2023 Report…………………………………………………………C-2 
 
REQUESTS 
  

3. RC General Election – Abstract of Votes – November 7, 2023..………………...C-3 
 

4. RC BOS & RC IDA Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Performance                            
Agreement (TROF) - $146,000…………………………………………………………C-4  

   
5. DHCD Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 (Belfast Waterline                    

Extension, Phase II) Administrative & Conditional Closeout……………………C-5 
 

6. VDOT Dante Depot Project – Certificate of Substantial Completion…………...C-6  
7. VDOT No-Cost Rural Addition Resolution Rte. 836 Extension -                                       

Culberson Lane…………………………………………………………………………..C-7 
 

8. RC School Board Reversion Funds Appropriation & Reallocation                             
concerning the 2% Employee Salary by the General Assembly…...…………...C-8  

 
9. RC DSS Board Appropriation of Funds concerning the 2% Employee                                

Salary by the General Assembly……………………………………………………...C-9 
 

10. DCJS Law Enforcement Equipment Grant - $542,000 ($61,000 Increase)…….C-10 
 

11. RC Sheriff, Lebanon & Honaker Police “Shop With A Cop” Donation………...C-11  
 

12. Library of Virginia Revised State Grant-In-Aid FY 2024 - $128,394…………….C-12 
 

13. VDEM Emergency Management Performance Grant - $7,500…………………...C-13   
 

14. RC Emergency Burn Ban Resolution Cancellation………………………….…….C-14 
 

15. Potesta Master Agreement for Engineers & Environmental Services                              
Contract Six-Month Extension………………………………………………………...C-15 

 
16. VDH & RC BOS Service Agreement – RC Health Department…………………...C-16 

 
17. RC Operational Medical Director (OMD) Contract for Services………………....C-17 

 
18. VDOT Resolution – Russell County Coal Haul Road Plan – Rte. 615 Gravel                          

Lick Road Improvements - $100,000…………………………………………………C-18 
 



19. RC Planning Commission – CL Dale Construction Review……………………...C-19 
 

20. Honaker & Castlewood Canneries Closure Date…………………………………..C-20 
 

21. County December Holiday Payroll & Schedule….………………………………...C-21 
 

22.  RC BOS January 2024 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………C-22 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


 

 

 

 

 

Russell County BOS 

VDOT Update  
December 4, 2023 

Board Action Requests 

The Residency reiterates the following request: 
 
The Coal Committee authorized $100,000 in funds for repairs to Route 615 (from Chaney Creek to Back Valley) 
at its April 13, 2023, meeting. If the Board has not already done so, a resolution by the Board allocating the coal 
severance tax funds to the work on the route is needed. A resolution adopting the overall coal road plan is 
acceptable with a copy of the coal road plan referenced in - and attached - to the resolution with the Route 615 
project shown in the plan.  (See attached letter) 
 
The Residency also requests approval of a resolution (previously submitted to the County Administrator) to add a 
short section of Route 836 (Culberson Lane – near the Farm Co-op on Alternate Route 58) to the VDOT 
secondary road system.  
  

Maintenance Activities - Completed   
 

Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities including: 

 Maintenance work (spreading gravel, blading) was conducted on Route 640. 

 Shoulder repairs were completed on portions of Route 19. 

 Ditching and pipe clearing operations were completed portions of Routes 82, 600 and 648. 

 Pipe replacements completed include two pipes on Route 65 near the Scott County Line and a single  

pipe on Route 667.   

 Boom Ax / Tree Trimming & Brush cutting operations were completed on portions for the following routes: 

71, 609, 653, 661, 669 and 682.  

 Pothole patching was completed on portions of routes 19, 67, 620 and 648. 

 A slope repair was completed on Route 608. 

 

Maintenance Activities - Planned 

• Slope stabilization / slide repair on Route 621.  This work as a ‘time of year’ restriction on it which 

prevents work from being done during certain months due to environmental concerns.   

• Boom ax work on various routes throughout the County.  

• Pavement Repairs (machine patching) on Route 615 (CST funded – See Board request above) 
 

• Debris removal on various routes (down trees and rocks/slides). 
 

• Removal of dead trees on Routes 80 (Hayter's Gap), 71, and 65. 
 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

• 618 Rabbit Ridge - Grader patch paved section latter this summer. 
 

• Ditching at various locations through the County.  
 

• Streambank stabilization on Routes 613 (Moccasin Valley) and 661 (Artrip) 
 

• Drainage / slope stabilization in the median of Route 19 (Bypass) near Coal Tipple Hollow. 
 
 

Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 

All Rural Rustic project funded this year have been completed.    

 

Non — VDOT Projects 

 

Pure Salmon Project 

No new information to report this month. 

 

Three Rivers Destination Center 

No new activity this month on this project. 

2023 Resurfacing 

The following routes were resurfaced with asphalt this season: 

 

Route 80:    Intersection with Route 67 for a distance 0.4 miles south of Route 67 

Route 611:  Intersection with Route 609 to intersection with Route 685. 

Route 622:  Buchanan County to intersection with Route 624 

Route 624:  Buchanan County to 0.2 miles south of intersection with Route 843 

Route 646:  Intersection with Route 637 for a distance 0.8 miles south of Route 637 

Route 678:  Intersection with Route 680 for a distance 1.1 miles east of Route 680 

Route 732:  Intersection with Route 615 to dead end 

Route 740:  Intersection with Route 640 to intersection with Route 645 

Route 845:  0.35 mile loop off Alternate Route 58 

Route 1201: Intersection with Route 82 to dead end 

Route 1202: Intersection with Route 1206 to intersection with Route 82 

Route 1203: Intersection with Route 1206 to intersection with Route 82 

Route 1203: Intersection with Route 82 to intersection with Route 1205 

Route 1204: Intersection with Route 1206 to Route intersection with Route 1205 

Route 1205: Intersection with Route 696 to intersection with Route 1204 

Route 1206: Intersection with Route 1202 to intersection with Route 1204 

Route 1207: Intersection with Route 1208 to intersection with Route 1206 

Route 1208: Intersection with Route 1207 to dead end  

 

The following routes were resurfaced (latex overlay) during the 2023 paving season: 

Route  603:  Intersection with Route 643 to Tazewell County line 

Route  640:  Intersection with Route 740 for a distance of 2.5 miles 

Route  662:  Intersection with Route 82 to intersection with Route 740 

Route  666:  Intersection with Route 628 to intersection with Route 615 



 

 

 

Route  764:  Intersection with Route 19 to dead end 

Route  782:  Intersection with Route 19 to dead end 

Route  821:  Intersection with Route 66o to dead end 

Route  854:  Intersection with Route 764 to dead end 

Route  878:  Intersection with Route 873 to dead end 

Route  904:  Intersection with Route 19 to dead end 

Route  906:  Intersection with Route 904 to dead end 

Route  911:  Intersection with Route 883 to dead end 

Route  919:  Intersection with Route 883 to dead end 

Route  929:  Intersection with Route 904 to intersection with Route 904 

Route  998:  Intersection with Route 99 to Haber Drive 

Route  999:  Intersection with Route 998 to dead end 

Route 1060: Intersection with Route 19 to dead end 

Route 1061: Intersection with Route 1060 to dead end 

 

Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1800-FOR-ROAD 

call to enter work order requests into VDOT's tracking system. 



Steve Breeding
Highlight































































Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight





1 

 
 

TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND 

 

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

 

 This PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT made and entered this 25th day of October, 

2023(the “Award Date”) by and among the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA (the 

“Locality”), a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commonwealth”), 

TATE ACCESS FLOORS, INC. (the “Company”), a company authorized to transact business 

in the Commonwealth whose Federal Employer Identification Number is 52-0781996, the 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF RUSSELL COUNTY (the 

“Authority”), a political subdivision of the Commonwealth, and the TOBACCO REGION 

REVITALIZATION COMMISSION (the “Commission”), a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth.   

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Virginia General Assembly created the Commission to, among other 

things, stimulate the economic growth and development of tobacco-dependent communities in 

the Southern and Southwest regions (the “Region”) of the Commonwealth; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission awarded a grant in the amount of $146,000 to the Locality 

for the benefit of the Company from the Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund (the “Grant”) for the 

purpose of inducing the Company to undertake the Project (as defined herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that the Project will benefit the Region and 

is consistent with and in furtherance of the Commission’s public purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company will purchase, equip, improve and operate a manufacturing 

facility in the Locality (the “Facility”), thereby making a significant Capital Investment, and 

creating and Maintaining a significant number of New Jobs, as such capitalized terms are 

hereinafter defined; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Locality will provide the Grant to the Authority with the expectation 

that the Authority will provide the Grant to or for the use of the Company, provided that the 

Company promises to meet certain criteria relating to Capital Investment and New Jobs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the parties desire to set forth their understanding and agreement as to the 

payout of the Grant and the obligations of the Company regarding Capital Investment and New 

Jobs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the purchase, equipping, improvement and operation of the Facility will 

entail a capital expenditure by or on behalf of the Company of approximately $11,300,000 and 

will further entail the creation and maintenance of 170 New Jobs at the Facility; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that the expenditure of the Grant to 

stimulate the generation of additional tax revenue and economic activity in the Region constitutes 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



2 

 
 

a valid public purpose for the expenditure of public funds as outlined in Section 3.2-3100, et seq. 

of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, and is the animating purpose for the Grant: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual benefits, promises 

and undertakings of the parties to this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as 

follows. 

 

Section 1.   Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following 

definitions: 

 

“Capital Investment” means a capital expenditure by or on behalf of the Company in 

taxable real property, taxable tangible personal property, or both, at the Facility. The Capital 

Investment must be in addition to any new investments the Company promised to make under 

any other agreement with the Commission. The Capital Investment must be in addition to the 

capital improvements at the Facility as of the Award Date. 

 

“Earned Grant Funds” means the portion of the Grant that is due to the Company 

pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement. 

 

“Maintain” means that the New Jobs will continue without interruption from the date of 

creation through the Performance Date.  Positions for the New Jobs will be treated as Maintained 

during periods in which such positions are not filled due to (i) temporary reductions in the 

Company’s employment levels (so long as there is active recruitment for open positions), (ii) 

strikes, and (iii) other temporary work stoppages. 

 

“Minimum Investment Target” means the Company’s obligation to make a Capital 

Investment of at least $1 million.  

 

“New Job” means new permanent full-time employment of an indefinite duration at the 

Facility for which the standard fringe benefits are provided by the Company for the employee, 

and for which the Company pays an average annual wage of at least $52,987. Average annual 

wage means the average annual salary of full-time positions at the Facility determined by 

dividing total payroll (of a type included in W-2 compensation) provided to full-time positions 

at the Facility by the number of full-time positions at the Facility. Each New Job must require a 

minimum of either (i) 35 hours of an employee’s time per week for the entire normal year of the 

Company’s operations, which “normal year” must consist of at least 48 weeks, or (ii) 1,680 

hours per year.  Seasonal or temporary positions, positions created when a job function is shifted 

from an existing location in the Commonwealth, and positions with construction contractors, 

vendors, suppliers and similar multiplier or spin-off jobs shall not qualify as New Jobs.  Net new 

jobs in the Commonwealth for contractors or employees of contractors who provide dedicated 

full-time service to the Company may count as New Jobs, even though the Company is not 

directly paying the wages or providing the fringe benefits, if the other conditions set forth in this 



3 

 
 

paragraph have been satisfied.  The New Jobs must be in addition to any new positions the 

Company promised to make under any other agreement with the Commission. The New Jobs 

must also be in addition to the full-time jobs at the Facility as of the Award Date, as evidenced 

by a recent filing with the Virginia Employment Commission.  

 

“Performance Date” means the date that is the third anniversary of the Award Date. If 

the Locality, in consultation with the Authority and the Commission, deems that the Company is 

making good faith and reasonable efforts to achieve the Targets, the Locality may request an 

extension of the Performance Date by up to 12 months. Any extension of the Performance Date 

shall require the prior written approval of the Commission’s Executive Director or his designee. 

Any further extensions will require the approval of the Commission’s governing body. If the 

Performance Date is extended, the Commission shall send written notice of the extension to the 

Authority and the Company, and the date to which the Performance Date has been extended shall 

be the “Performance Date” for the purposes of this Agreement. 

 

“Project” means the Company’s completion and operation of the Facility and satisfaction 

of the Targets. 

 

“Targets” means the Company’s obligations to make Capital Investments at the Facility 

of at least $11,300,000 and to create and Maintain at least 170 New Jobs at the Facility, all as of 

the Performance Date.  

 

“Virginia Code” means the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended.     

 

Section 2.   Targets. 

 

(a) Targets:  The Company will complete the Project, including making a Capital 

Investment of at least $11,300,000, and creating and Maintaining at least 170 New Jobs at the 

Facility, all as of the Performance Date.  

 

 

Section 3. Disbursement of the Grant. 

 

(a) Disbursement of the Grant in arrears: After the Performance Date, the 

Commission will determine the extent to which the Company met or exceeded the Targets as of 

the Performance Date and the amount of Earned Grant Funds that are due to the Company.  Within 

30 days thereafter, the Commission will pay to the Locality the Earned Grant Funds. Within 30 

days thereafter, the Locality will pay to the Authority, and the Authority will pay to the Company, 

the Earned Grant Funds.    

 

 

Section 4. Company Reporting.   

 

(a) Award Date Report:  Within 30 days of the Award Date, the Company shall provide 

an Award Date Report in the form attached hereto as Attachment 1, that includes a statement of 

(1) the value of real property and other taxable assets owned by Company at the Facility as of the 



4 

 
 

Award Date (if any), which may be verified by the Locality’s Commissioner of Revenue, the 

Authority and the Commission; and (2) the number of employees of the Company working full-

time at the Facility as of the Award Date, as reflected by the Company’s report to the Virginia 

Employment Commission for the quarter ending most recently prior to the Award Date.  

 

(b) Progress Reporting: The Company shall provide, at the Company’s expense, in the 

form attached hereto as Attachment 2, detailed verification reasonably satisfactory to the 

Locality, the Authority, and the Commission of the Company’s progress on achieving the Targets.  

Such progress reports will be provided annually, starting on the first anniversary of the Award 

Date and covering the period through the most recently completed quarter.  Further, the Company 

shall provide such progress reports at such other times as the Locality, the Authority, or the 

Commission may reasonably require.   

 

If the Company wishes to count as Capital Investments the capital expenditures made on 

its behalf by a lessor or a developer of the Facility, the Company is responsible for assembling 

and distributing the documentation necessary to verify the capital expenditures made on behalf of 

the Company.   

 

If the Company wishes to count as New Jobs employees of contractors, to the extent 

permitted in the definition of “New Jobs” in Section 1, the Company is responsible for assembling 

and distributing the documentation necessary to verify such New Jobs, including whether such 

jobs are net New Jobs in the Commonwealth.   

 

 (c) Final Report: The Company shall provide, at the Company’s expense, in the form 

attached hereto as Attachment 3, detailed verification reasonably satisfactory to the Locality, the 

Authority, and the Commission of the Company’s achievement of the Targets.  The final report 

shall be filed within 90 days after the Performance Date. 

 

Section 5. Verification of Targets. 

 

(a) Verification of Capital Investment: The Company hereby authorizes the 

Locality, including the Locality’s Commissioner of the Revenue and Treasurer, to release to the 

Authority and the Commission the Company’s real estate tax, business personal property tax and 

machinery and tools tax information.  Such information shall be marked and considered 

confidential and proprietary and shall be used by the Commission solely for verifying satisfaction 

of the Capital Investment Target. If the Locality, the Commissioner of the Revenue, or the 

Treasurer should require additional documentation or consents from the Company to access such 

information, the Company shall promptly provide, at the Company’s expense, such additional 

documentation or consents as the Locality, the Authority, or the Commission may request. 

 

In addition to the verification data described above, in the sole discretion of the Locality, 

the Authority, or the Commission, the Locality, the Authority, or the Commission, may each 

require the Company to provide at its sole expense such other documentation, including invoices, 

or audits as may be required to properly verify that the Company met or exceeded the Capital 

Investment Target.   

 



5 

 
 

(b) Verification of New Jobs and Wages:  The Company must submit a copy of its 

four most recent Employer’s Quarterly Tax Reports (Form FC-20) filed with the Virginia 

Employment Commission with each progress report and its final report.  The forms shall be 

marked and considered confidential and proprietary and shall be used by the Commission solely 

for verifying satisfaction of the New Jobs Target. The Company expressly grants its consent for 

the Virginia Employment Commission to release all Company employment records of any kind 

in its possession to the Commission. 

 

The Company agrees that it will report to the Virginia Employment Commission with 

respect to its employees at a facility-level, rather than at the company-level.   

 

In addition to the verification data described above, in the sole discretion of the Locality, 

the Authority, or the Commission, the Locality, the Authority or the Commission, may each 

require the Company to provide at its sole expense such other documentation or audits as may be 

required to properly verify that the Company met or exceeded the New Jobs Target. 

 

Section 6. Partial and Full Performance.  

 

(a) If Minimum Investment Target is Not Met:  The Company must satisfy the 

Minimum Investment Target by the Performance Date in order to be eligible for any portion of 

the Grant. If the Minimum Investment Target is not met by the Performance Date, the 

Commission will not pay any portion of the Grant and this Agreement may be terminated as 

provided in Section 9(f). 

 

 (b) Allocation of Grant Proceeds:  The Grant is to be allocated as 50% for the 

Company’s Capital Investment Target, and 50% for the Company’s New Jobs Target. 

 

(c) If Minimum Investment Target is Met:  The provisions of this subsection (c) apply 

only if the Company has met the Minimum Investment Target.    

 

If the Company has not met or exceeded both Targets at the Performance Date, the 

Commission shall pay to the Locality that part of the Grant that is proportional to the Company’s 

performance toward each Target (the “Earned Grant Funds”). For example, if as of the 

Performance Date, the Company has attained only 75% of the Capital Investment Target and only 

25% of the New Jobs Target, the Commission shall pay to the Locality 75% of the Grant proceeds 

allocated to the Capital Investment Target, plus 25% of the Grant proceeds allocated to the New 

Jobs Target.   

 

(d) Full Performance:  If the Commission determines that the Company has met or 

exceeded both Targets at the Performance Date, the Commission shall pay to the Locality the full 

amount of the Grant.  

 

 

 

Section 7. Revenue Sharing. 

 



6 

 
 

Upon receipt of local tax revenue from the Company, the Locality will pay a portion of 

such revenue to the Commission as provided in the Revenue Sharing Agreement attached to this 

Agreement as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 8. Notices. 

 

Formal notices and communications between the Parties shall be given either by (i) 

personal service, (ii) delivery by a reputable document delivery service that provides a receipt 

showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing utilizing a certified or first class mail postage 

prepaid service of the United States Postal Service that provides a receipt showing date and time 

of delivery, addressed as noted below.  Notices and communications personally delivered or 

delivered by document delivery service shall be deemed effective upon receipt. Notices and 

communications mailed shall be deemed effective on the second business day following deposit 

in the United States mail. Such written notices and communications shall be addressed to:   

 

if to the Company, to:     with a copy to: 

 

Tate Access Floors Inc 

7510 Montevideo Rd 

Jessup, MD  20794 

 

     

     

     

     

Attention:      

 

if to the Locality, to:     with a copy to: 

 

Russell County IDA 

133 Highland Dr Suite B 

Lebanon,VA 24266 

Attention:  Mr. Ernest McFaddin, 

Chairman 

     

     

     

     

Attention:      

 

if to the Authority, to:     with a copy to: 

 

Russell County IDA 

133 Highland Dr Suite B 

Lebanon,VA 24266 

Attention:  Mr. Ernest McFaddin, 

Chairman 

     

     

     

     

Attention:      

 

if to the Commission, to:    with a copy to: 

 

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 

701 E. Franklin Street, Suite 501 

Richmond, Virginia  23219 

Attention: Executive Director 

Office of the Attorney General 

202 N. 9th Street 

Richmond, Virginia  23219 

Attention:  Counsel to the Tobacco Region 

Revitalization Commission 



7 

 
 

 

Section 9. Miscellaneous. 

 

 (a) Entire Agreement; Amendments:  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

among the parties hereto as to the Grant and may not be amended or modified, except in writing, 

signed by each of the parties hereto.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  The Company may not 

assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 

Locality, the Authority and the Commission.   

 

 (b) Governing Law; Venue:  This Agreement is made, and is intended to be performed, 

in the Commonwealth and shall be construed and enforced by the laws of the Commonwealth.  

Jurisdiction and venue for any litigation arising out of or involving this Agreement shall lie in the 

Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, and such litigation shall be brought only in such court, 

unless the Commission’s Executive Director agrees otherwise. 

 

 (c) Counterparts and Electronic Signatures:  This Agreement may be executed in one 

or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original, and all of which together shall be one 

and the same instrument.  Facsimile signatures or signed copies sent by portable document format 

(PDF) shall be deemed originals.   

 

 (d) Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be 

unenforceable, invalid or illegal, then the enforceability, validity and legality of the remaining 

provisions will not in any way be affected or impaired, and such provision will be deemed to be 

restated to reflect the original intentions of the parties as nearly as possible in accordance with 

applicable law.   

 

 (e) Attorney’s Fees:  Attorney’s fees shall be paid by the party incurring such fees in 

connection with litigation arising out of this Agreement, except that the Company, the Locality, 

and the Authority (subject to receipt of necessary appropriations) shall be responsible for the 

Commission’s costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees.   

 

 (f) Termination and Survival:  The Commission, after consultation with the Locality and 

the Authority, may terminate this Agreement by written notice to all parties in the event that the 

Company fails (1) to meet the Minimum Investment Target by the Performance Date; (2) to meet 

its reporting requirements; or (3) to make good faith and reasonable efforts to achieve the Targets 

prior to the Performance Date.  Prior to such termination, the Commission shall provide written 

notice to the parties of the deficiency.  The Authority shall allow the Company 10 business days 

from the date of such notice by which the Company may cure the deficiency and thereby avoid 

termination of this Agreement.  In the event of such termination, the Revenue Sharing Agreement 

between the Locality and the Commission shall remain in effect until the Commission satisfies 

the repayment obligations to the Locality as provided therein. In the event this Agreement is 

terminated by the Authority the Company shall not receive any portion of the Grant.  

  

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



9 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Performance 

Agreement as of the date first written above. 

 

      COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

 

 

By       

           Name:       

           Title:         

Date: _________________________ 

 

 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

 

 

By       

           Name:       

           Title:         

Date: _________________________ 

 

 

TATE ACCESS FLOORS, INC. 

 

 

By       

           Name:       

           Title:         

Date: _________________________ 
 

TOBACCO REGION 

REVITALIZATION COMMISSION 

 

 

By       

Name:  Hon. James Campos 

Title:    Acting Executive Director 

Date: _________________________ 
 

Attachment 1: Award Date Report Form 

Attachment 2: Annual Progress Report Form 

Attachment 3: Final Report Form 

Exhibit A: Revenue Sharing Agreement  



10 

 
 

Attachment 1 

Page 1 of 1 

AWARD DATE REPORT 

TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 

Project  

Location  

Amount of Grant  

Award Date  

Performance Date  

 

Jobs as of Award Date Number 

Employees of Company working full time at the Facility as of the 

Award Date (attach latest VEC Form FC-20) 

 

  

 

Taxable Assets Owned by Company as of Award Date Value 

Land associated with the Facility  $ 

Land Improvements $ 

Production Machinery and Tools $ 

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $ 

Other  

  

         Total $                         

 

TO BE CERTIFIED BY AN OFFICER OF THE COMPANY: 

I certify that I have examined this report and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, 

correct, and complete. 

 

Company Name:         

 

Submitted By:________________________________________________  

Signature:           

Print Name:           

Title:       Date:      

 

 

  



11 

 
 

 

Attachment 2 

Page 1 of 2 

ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 

TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 

 

Project  

Location  

Amount of Grant  

Performance Reporting Period  

Performance Date  

 

PROJECT PERFORMANCE: 

 

Performance Measurement Target As of _______ % Complete 

    

New Jobs (over ___ baseline)1    
Confidence level target will be 

reached by Performance Date shown 

above (check one) 

High 

☐ 

Moderate 

☐ 

Low 

☐ 

Capital Investment (provide 

breakdown below)2 

   

Confidence level target will be 

reached by Performance Date shown 

above (check one) 

High 

☐ 

Moderate 

☐ 

Low 

☐ 

Average Annual Wage   N/A 
Confidence level target will be 

reached by Performance Date shown 

above (check one) 

High 

☐ 

Moderate 

☐ 

Low 

☐ 

Standard Fringe Benefits 

(check one) 

Yes 

☐ 

No 

☐ 
N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1Data will be verified using Virginia Employment Commission records. 
2Data will be verified with locality records. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



12 

 
 

Attachment 2 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Capital Investment Breakdown Amount 

  

Land $ 

Land Improvements $ 

New Construction or Expansion $ 

Renovation or Building Upfit $ 

Production Machinery and Tools $ 

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $ 

Other  

         Total $                         

 

COMMENTS: 

 

Discuss project status, including the current level of new jobs and capital investment, progress 

on targets, changes or likely changes in project’s nature that may impact achievement of targets, 

and other information relevant to project performance.  If the project is not on track to meet 

targets, please provide an explanation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO BE CERTIFIED BY AN OFFICER OF THE COMPANY: 

 

I certify that I have examined this report and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, 

correct, and complete. 

 

Company:           

 

Submitted By:          
  Signature of Official      

 

Name:          
 Print Name 

  

 Title:         

 

Date: _________________________ 

 

 



13 

 
 

Attachment 3 

Page 1 of 2 

FINAL REPORT 

TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND 
 

  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
 

Project  

Location  

Amount of Grant  

Performance Date  
 

 

PROJECT PERFORMANCE: 

 

Performance Measurement Target As of _______ % Complete 

    

New Jobs (over       baseline)1    

Capital Investment (provide 

breakdown below)2 

   

Average Annual Wage   N/A 

Standard Fringe Benefits  
 

 

Capital Investment Breakdown Amount 

  

Land $ 

Land Improvements $ 

New Construction or Expansion $ 

Renovation or Building Upfit $ 

Production Machinery and Tools $  

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $ 

Other  

         Total $                         
 

 
1Data will be verified using Virginia Employment Commission records. 
2Data will be verified with locality records. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 
 

Attachment 3 

Page 2 of 2 

 

COMMENTS: 

 

[Discuss Project status or the importance of the Project to the locality and region.] 

 

 

TO BE CERTIFIED BY AN OFFICER OF THE COMPANY: 

 

I certify that I have examined this report and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, 

correct, and complete. 

 

Company:            

 

Submitted By:          
  Signature of Official      

 

Name:          
 Print Name 

  

 Title:         

 

Date: _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 

 
 

Exhibit A 

 

Revenue Sharing Agreement 

 This REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made and entered into this 

the 25th day of October, 2023 (“Effective Date”) by and between the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, 

VIRGINIA (the “Locality”), a political subdivision of the Commonwealth and the TOBACCO 

REGION REVITALIZATION COMMISSION, a body corporate and political subdivision of 

the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commission”).  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into the Performance Agreement dated as of October 25th, 

2023 (“Performance Agreement”) to which this Agreement is attached pursuant to which the 

Commission will make a Grant to the Locality that the Locality will use to induce the Company 

to undertake the Project, thereby making a Capital Investment and creating New Jobs in the 

Locality; and 

WHEREAS, if the Project is completed, the Locality will realize additional Local Tax 

Revenue and desires to share a portion of that Local Tax Revenue with the Commission: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual benefits, promises 

and undertakings of the parties to this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as 

follows. 

1. Definitions: Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Agreement have the same 

definitions as set forth in the Performance Agreement. 

“Local Taxes” means the tax payments the Locality receives from the Company as a result 

of local assessments (including any entities owned by, affiliated with, or under common control 

with the Company) pursuant to Title 58.1, Subtitle III of the Code of Virginia, including, but 

limited to, real property taxes, business, professional and occupational license taxes, machinery 

and tools taxes, and tangible personal property taxes. 

“New Tax Revenue” means the sum of Local Taxes generated in connection with or 

attributable to the Project that the Company pays to the Locality, directly or indirectly. If the 

Project involves the expansion of the Facility or the Company’s operations in the Locality, the 

New Tax Revenue for a given tax year is the amount of Local Taxes the Company paid in excess 

of the amount of Local Taxes the Company paid for the tax year immediately preceding the date 

of the Performance Agreement. (For example, if the Performance Agreement is dated 2020, the 

Company paid $50,000 of Local Taxes in 2019, and the Company paid $75,000 of Local Taxes 

in 2021, the New Tax Revenue for 2021 would be $25,000.)  

2. Revenue Sharing: Starting with the first tax year that begins after the Award Date of the 

Performance Agreement, the Locality will pay to the Commission an amount equal to 5% of the 



16 

 
 

New Tax Revenue (“Revenue Sharing Payments”). The Locality will make Revenue Sharing 

Payments within 45 days after the Locality receives Company’s payment of its Local Taxes.  

 

3. Payment Period: The Locality will continue to pay Revenue Sharing Payments to the 

Commission until the total amount of Revenue Sharing Payments the Locality has paid to the 

Commission equals 105% of the Earned Grant Funds.  

The Locality’s obligation to pay Revenue Sharing Payments is contingent upon its receipt 

of tax payments from the Company and is subject to the Locality’s receipt of appropriations 

sufficient to make such payments.  The Locality’s chief executive officer agrees to use his or her 

best efforts to secure the necessary appropriations. 

4. Commission Reimbursement to Locality:  In the event Company does not meet its 

Targets in full, the Commission shall reimburse to the Locality within 120 days of the 

Performance Date, as defined in the Performance Agreement and as applicable, the amount of 

Revenue Sharing Payments received by the Commission from the Locality that exceed 105% of 

Earned Grant Funds.   

 

5. Incorporation by Reference: Sections 8 (Notices) and 9 (Miscellaneous) of the 

Performance Agreement are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement. 

 

TOBACCO REGION 

REVITALIZATION COMMISSION 

By:_______________________________ 

James E. Campos, Acting Executive 

Director 

Date:______________________________ 

 

      RUSSELL COUNTY 

By:________________________________ 

Title:______________________________ 

Date:______________________________ 



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 
TROF Disbursement & Reporting Requirements 

 
 
 
TROF Grants    
 
TROF grants can be disbursed pre- or post- performance. Both disbursement methods require local 
revenue sharing agreements between the Commission and the Locality which means all TROF grants 
require the Locality to be party to the Grant Agreement for revenue sharing purposes. 
 
However, while the Locality is required to be party to the Grant Agreement, the Applicant should be the 
local Economic Development Authority (EDA)/ Industrial Development Authority (IDA) since it is 
procedurally less complex for an EDA/IDA to legally disburse Commission grant funds to a beneficiary 
company. 
 
In special circumstances in which no local EDA/IDA is active or in existence in a Locality, then the 
Locality may be the Awardee/ Applicant if the Commission is provided written assurance from the 
Locality's counsel that the Locality followed all legal requirements and that the obligations of 
the agreement are legally enforceable.  The Commission will not execute a TROF Grant 
agreement with a Locality until such written assurance has been provided.    
 

• If disbursed POST-PERFORMANCE:  
o Only one disbursement will be made and that shall be after the Performance Date has 

passed.   
o After the Performance Date listed in the Agreement, the Commission will determine the 

extent to which the Company met or exceeds its Targets and the amount of Earned 
Grant Funds due to the Company.  The Commission shall pay the Locality the Earned 
Grant Funds within 30 days of determining the extent to which the Company met or 
exceeded its Targets. After receiving funds, the Locality shall pay the EDA/IDA who will 
pay the Company within 30 days.  

o  

Reporting Requirements: 

• Within 30 days of the Award Date listed in the Agreement, the Company shall provide to the 
Commission (see Section 4(a) and Attachment 1) the Award Date Report which establishes 
the baseline performance metrics for the Grant Agreement.   

• Annually by the anniversary of the Award Date listed in the Agreement, the Company shall 
provide the Commission with Progress Reports (see Section 4(b) and Attachment 2).  For a 
typical performance period of three years, three progress reports will be provided. 

•  Within 90 days after the Performance Date listed in the Agreement the Company shall 
provide the Commission with the Final Report (see Section 4(c) and Attachment 3).    

 

 

 

 



      

   

   

   

                              

 

  

     

 

           

   

    

      

 

 

  

  

      

 

               

       

   

 
 

 

                       

                                 

                                 

                         

                               

     

   

  

  

    

 

     

   

   

    

 

 

   

                

   

 

              

 

      

                                                       

           

                                                                        

                      

                                               

                                             

                                   

                                       

                   

                                           

                                   

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           

    
   

 
 

 

    

                
                 

                 
            

                
   

        
   

  

       

 

  

 

   

    

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

   

  

  

   

 

   
  

   

    
   

  

     

   

  

  

     

    

  

  

 

                        
       

                              
      

                        
                       

                  
                    

          

                  
              

                         

  

    

  

    
   

 
 

 

    

                
                 

                 
            

                
   

        
   

  

       

 

  

 

   

    

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

   

   

  

  

   

 

   
  

   

    
   

    Corporation 

 

  

     

   

  

  

     

    

  

  

 
                         

       

                              
      

                        
                       

                  
                    

          

                  
              

                         

  

    

  

    
   

 
 

 

    

                
                 

                 
            

                
   

        
   

  

       

 

  

 

   

    

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

   

   

  

  

   

 

   
  

   

    
   

 

  

     

   

  

  

     

    

  

  

 
                           

       

                               
       

                        
                       

                  
                    

          

                    
                

                           

  

    

Form W-9 

Revised December 2017 

Commonwealth of Virginia 
Substitute W-9 Form 

Request for Taxpayer Identification 
Number and Certification 

ct
io
n

 1
 ‐
Ta
xp
ay
er

 Id
e
n
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n

 
Se
c 

 Employer Identification Number (EIN) 

 Social Security Number (SSN) 

__     __     __     __     __     __          __   __  __    

Please select the appropriate Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN or SSN) type and 
enter your 9 digit ID number . The EIN or SSN provided must match the name given 
on the “Legal Name” line to avoid backup withholding. If you do not have a Tax ID 
number, please reference "Specific Instructions ‐ Section 1." If the account is in more 
than one name, provide the name of the individual who is recognized with the IRS as 
the responsible party. 

Dunn & Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS) (see 
instructions) 

__     __     __     __     __     __          __   __  __    

Legal Name: 

Business Name: 

Entity Type Entity Classification Exemptions (see instructions) 

 Individual 

 Sole Proprietorship 

 Partnership 

 Trust  Disregarded Entity 

 Estate  Limited Liability Company 

 Government  Partnership

 C‐Corporation

 S‐Corporation 

 Non‐Profit  Corporation 

 VA State Agency 

 Joint Venture 

Medical Services 

 Political Subdivision 

 Federal Government 

 Legal Services 

 VA Local Government 

 Real Estate Agent 

 OTH Government 

 Professional Services 

 Tax Exempt Organization 

 Other 

Exempt payee code 
(if any): 

(from backup withholding) 

Exemption from FATCA reporting 
code (if any): 

Contact Information 

City: State : Zip Code: 

Legal Address: Name: 

Email Address: 

Business Phone: 

City: State : Zip Code: 

Remittance Address: Fax Number: 

Mobile Phone: 

Alternate Phone: 

Se
ct
io
n

 2
 ‐
C
e
rt
if
ic
at
io
n

 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding, and 

Certification instructions: You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup 
withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not 
apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual 
retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but 
you must provide your correct TIN. See instructions titled Certification 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 
3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined later in general instructions), and 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Printed Name: 

Authorized U.S. Signature: Date: 



  
 

  
 

 
 

  

 
  

 
  

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

  

   

  

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

  

 

  
 

  
     

 

    
    

       

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

   

 
  

   
  

  
  

 

  
 

 

  

 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

  

  

 
 

   
 

     

  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  

  
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  

  
 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W-9 Form Instructions 

General Instructions 

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code 
unless otherwise noted. 

Future developments. The IRS has created a page 
on IRS.gov for information about Form W-9, at 
www.irs.gov/w9. Information about any future 
developments affecting Form W-9 (such as 
legislation enacted after we release it) will be 
posted on that page. 

Purpose of Form 
A person who is required to file an information 
return with the IRS must obtain your correct 
taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for 
example, income paid to you, payments made to 
you in settlement of payment card and third party 
network transactions, real estate transactions, 
mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or 
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of 
debt, or contributions you made to an IRA. 
Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person 
(including a resident alien), to provide your correct 
TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, 
when applicable, to: 
1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or 
you are waiting for a number to be issued), 
2. Certify that you are not subject to backup 
withholding, or 
3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you 
are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also 
certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share 
of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or 
business is not subject to the withholding tax on 
foreign partners’ share of effectively connected 
income, and 
4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form 
(if any) indicating that you are exempt from the 
FATCA reporting, is correct. 

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax 
purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you 
are: 
• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident 

alien, 
• A partnership, corporation, company, or 

association created or organized in the United 
States or under the laws of the United States, 
• An estate (other than a foreign estate), or 

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 

301.7701-7). 

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the 
U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be 
treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. 
Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 
8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on 
Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities). 

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. 
Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may 
use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate 
U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most 
tax treaties contain a provision known as a “saving 
clause.” Exceptions specified in the saving clause 
may permit an exemption from tax to continue for 
certain types of income even after the payee has 
otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax 
purposes. 

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an 
exception contained in the saving clause of a tax 
treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on 
certain types of income, you must attach a 
statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following 
five items: 
1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the 
same treaty under which you claimed exemption 
from tax as a nonresident alien. 
2. The treaty article addressing the income. 
3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty 
that contains the saving clause and its exceptions. 
4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for 
the exemption from tax. 
5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax 
under the terms of the treaty article. 

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax 
treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship 
income received by a Chinese student temporarily 
present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this 
student will become a resident alien for tax 
purposes if his or her stay in the United States 
exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of 
the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated 
April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to 
continue to apply even after the Chinese student 
becomes a resident alien of the United States. A 
Chinese student who qualifies for this exception 
(under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is 
relying on this exception to claim an exemption 
from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship 
income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that 
includes the information described above to 
support that exemption. 

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, 
give the requester the appropriate completed Form 
W-8 or Form 8233. 

What is backup withholding? Persons making 
certain payments to you must under certain 
conditions withhold and pay to the IRS a percentage 
of such payments. This is called “backup 
withholding.” Payments that may be subject to 
backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt 
interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange 
transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, 
payments made in settlement of payment card and 
third party network transactions, and certain 

payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate 
transactions are not subject to backup withholding. 

You will not be subject to backup withholding on 
payments you receive if you give the requester your 
correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and 
report all your taxable interest and dividends on 
your tax return. 

Payments you receive will be subject to backup 
withholding if: 
1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester, 
2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see 
Section 2 Certification – Page 3 for details), 
3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an 
incorrect TIN, 
4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup 
withholding because you did not report all your 
interest and dividends on your tax return (for 
reportable interest and dividends only), or 
5. You do not certify to the requester that you are 
not subject to backup withholding under 4 above 
(for reportable interest and dividend accounts 
opened after 1983 only). 

Certain payees and payments are exempt from 
backup withholding.  See Exempt payee code on 
page 3 and the separate Instructions for the 
Requestor of Form W-9 for more information. 

What is FATCA reporting? The Foreign Account Tax 
Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating 
foreign financial institution to report all United 
States account holders that are specified United 
States persons. Certain payees are exempt from 
FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA 
reporting code on page 3 and the Instructions for 
the Requestor of Form W-9 for more information. 

Updating Your Information 

You must provide updated information to any 
person to whom you claimed to be an exempt 
payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and 
anticipate receiving reportable payments in the 
future from this person. For example, you may need 
to provide updated information if you are a C 
corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if 
you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must 
furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes 
for the account, for example, if the grantor of a 
grantor trust dies. 

Penalties 

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your 
correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a 
penalty of $50 for each such failure unless your 
failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful 
neglect. 

Civil penalty for false information with respect to 
withholding. If you make a false statement with no 

1 



  
 

 

   
 

  
  

 
  

   

  
 

   
 

  
   

 
 

 
 

  

 
   

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

  

  

 
 

   

  
   

     
   

  
  

   
    

   

 
  

  
  
   

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

  

  
  

  

 
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

  
   

  

 
   

 

 
  

 

 

 
 

     
  

   

  
   

  

   
 

 

  
 

  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

   
  

   
  

 

 
 

  
   

 
  

 

 

 
   

  

 
  

  
   

   
  

  
 

 
 
 

  

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 


 


 


 


 

 

 


 


 

Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W-9 Form Instructions 

reasonable basis that results in no backup 
withholding, you are subject to a $500 penalty. 

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully 
falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject 
you to criminal penalties including fines and/or 
imprisonment. 

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses 
TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may 
be subject to civil and criminal penalties. 

Specific Instructions 

Section 1 -Taxpayer Identification 
Check the appropriate Tax Identification Number 
(TIN) type. Enter your EIN/SSN in the space 
provided. If you are a resident alien and you do not 
have and /or are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN 
is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number 
(ITIN).  Enter it in the social security number box.  If 
you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN 
below. 

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply 
for one immediately.  To apply for an SSN, get Form 
SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from 
your local Social Security Administration office. Get 
Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer 
Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN or Form 
SS-4, Application for Employer Identification 
Number, to apply for an EIN.  You can get Forms W-
7 and SS-4 from the IRS by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM 
(1-800-829-3676) or from the IRS’s Internet Web 
Site www.irs.gov. 

If you do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN 
immediately, write “Applied For” in the space for 
the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the 
requester.  For interest and dividend payments, and 
certain payments made with respect to readily 
tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 
days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before 
you are subject to backup withholding on 
payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other 
types of payments.  You will be subject to backup 
withholding on all such payments until you provide 
your TIN to the requester. Note: Writing “Applied 
For” means that you have already applied for a TIN 
or that you intend to apply for one soon. 

Enter the TIN which coincides with the 'Legal 
Name' provided on the form. 

a. If you are an individual, check the "Social
 
Security Number (SSN)" box and enter the SSN.
 
b. If you are a Grantor or Revocable Trust, check 
the "Social Security Number (SSN)" box and enter 
the SSN of the Grantor. 
c. If you are a Resident Alien, check the "Social 
Security Number (SSN)" box and enter your SSN or 

your ITIN (IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification 
Number). 
d. If you are a Sole Proprietor, check the "Social 
Security Number (SSN)" box and enter the SSN of 
the sole proprietor. 
e. If you are a Single-Member LLC that is 
disregarded as an entity, check the "Social Security 
Number (SSN)" box and enter the member's SSN. 

Note:  If an LLC has one owner, the LLC's default tax 
status is "disregarded entity".  If an LLC has two 
owners, the LLC's default tax status is "partnership". 
If an LLC has elected to be taxed as a corporation, it 
must file IRS Form 2553 (S Corporation) or IRS Form 
8832 (C Corporation). 

Vendors are requested to enter their Dunn and 
Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS), if 
applicable. See number requirement below. 

Dunn and Bradstreet Universal Numbering System 
(DUNS) number requirement . The United States 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) requires 
all vendors that receive federal grant funds have 
their DUNS number recorded with and 
subsequently reported to the granting agency.  If a 
contractor has multiple DUNS numbers the 
contractor should provide the primary number 
listed with the Federal government’s Central 
Contractor Registration (CCR) at www.ccr.gov .  Any 
entity that does not have a DUNS number can apply 
for one on-line at http://www.dnb.com/us/ under 
the DNB D-U-N Number Tab. 

Legal Name. If you are an individual, you must 
generally enter the name shown on your social 
security card.  However, if you have changed your 
last name, for instance, due to marriage without 
informing the Social Security Administration of the 
name change, enter your first name, the last name 
shown on your social security card, and your new 
last name. If the account is in joint names, list first 
and then circle the name of the person or entity 
whose number you enter in Part I of the form. If you 
are using a name other than that which is listed on 
a Social Security Card, please enter the legal entity 
name as filed with the IRS. In general, enter the 
name shown on your income tax return.  Do not 
enter a Disregarded Entity Name on this line. 

Business Name. Business, Disregarded Entity, 
trade, or DBA ("doing business as") name. 

Entity Type. Select the appropriate entity type. 

Individual. If you are an individual, you must 
generally enter the name shown on your income tax 
return. 

Sole proprietor.  Enter your individual name as 
shown on your social security card on the “Legal 
Name” line.  You may enter your business, trade, or 

“doing business as (DBA)” name on the “Business 
Name” line. 

Partnership. A partnership is an entity reflecting a 
relationship existing between two or more persons 
who join to carry on a trade or business.   Enter the 
partnerships entity's name on the "Legal Name" 
line.  This name should match the name shown on 
the legal document creating the entity.  You may 
enter your business, trade, or "doing business as 
(DBA) name on the "Business Name" line. 

Trust. A legal entity that acts as fiduciary, agent or 
trustee on behalf of a person or business entity for 
the purpose of administration, management and 
the eventual transfer of assets to a beneficial party. 
Enter the name of the legal entity on the "Legal 
Name" line. 

Estate. A separate legal entity created under state 
law solely to transfer property from one party to 
another. The entity is separated by law from both 
the grantor and the beneficiaries.  Enter the name 
of the legal entity on the "Legal Name" line. 

Government. The Government of any State, any 
Political Subdivision of any State, any Agency or 
Instrumentality of a State or of a Political 
Subdivision of a State. 

Non-Profit. An organization that is organized and 
operated exclusively for exempt purposes and none 
of its earnings may inure to any private shareholder 
or individual. 

Corporation. A company recognized by law as a 
single body with its own powers and liabilities, 
separate from those of the individual members. 
Enter the entity's name on the "Legal Name" line 
and any trade or "doing business as (DBA)" name on 
the "Business Name" line. 

S-Corporation. A corporation that is taxed like a 
partnership: a corporation in which five or fewer 
people own at least half the stock.  Enter the 
entity's name on the "Legal Name" line and any 
trade or "doing business as (DBA)" name on the 
"Business Name" line. 

C-Corporation. A business that is taxed as a 
separate entity: a business taxed under Subchapter 
C of the Internal Revenue Code and legally distinct 
from its owners.  Enter the entity's name on the 
"Legal Name" line and any trade or "doing business 
as (DBA)" name on the "Business Name" line. 

Limited liability Company (LLC). An LLC with at least 
two members is classified as a partnership for 
federal income tax purposes unless it files Form 
8832 and affirmatively elects to be treated as a 
corporation. Enter the name of the partnership or 
corporation. An LLC with only one member is 
treated as an entity disregarded as separate from its 
owner for income tax purposes (but as a separate 

2 



  
 

 
 

   

  
   

 
  

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  

   

  

 
  

  
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  

 

   

 
  

  

  
 

  
  

 
  

 
  

   
  

  

   
   

  
  

  
    
  

  
  

  
   
  

 
 

  

  
   

  
  

 
      

        

            
     
     
     
     

    
    

                                             
                                             
                                             
                                             

      

    

 
  

 
 

  
  

   

 
 

  
 

 

  

  
  

   

  
 

  
  

 
 

  

 
  

 
  

 
  

  
   
 

 
  

 
   
    

    
    

 
  

  

      

 
 

 
 

 

 
   

 
  

 

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

 
 

 

    
  

    

              
  

  
        

          
  

  
            

 
  

 

Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W-9 Form Instructions 

entity for purposes of employment tax and certain 
excise taxes), unless it files Form 8832 and 
affirmatively elects to be treated as a corporation. 
If you are a single-member LLC (including a foreign 
LLC with a domestic owner) that is disregarded as 
an entity separate from its owner, enter the 
owner’s name on the “Legal Name” line.  Caution: 
A disregarded domestic entity that has a foreign 
owner must use the appropriate Form W-8. 

Entity Classification.  Select the appropriate 
classification type. 

Contact Information.  Enter your contact 
information. 

Enter your Legal Address. Enter your Remittance 
Address. A Remittance Address is the location in 
which you or your entity receives business 
payments. 

Enter your Business Phone Number. Enter your 
Mobile Phone Number, if applicable. Enter your Fax 
Number, if applicable. Enter your Email Address. 

For clarification on IRS Guidelines, see www.irs.gov. 

Exemptions 

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or 
FATCA reporting, enter in the Exemptions box, any 
code(s) that may apply to you.  See Exempt payee 
code and Exemption from FATCA reporting code 
below. 

Exempt payee code. Generally, individuals 
(including sole proprietors) are not exempt from 
backup withholding.  Corporations are exempt from 
backup withholding for certain payments, such as 
interest and dividends.  Corporations are not 
exempt from backup withholding for payments 
made in settlement of payment card or third party 
network transactions. 

Note. If you are exempt from backup withholding, 
you should still complete this form to avoid possible 
erroneous backup withholding. 

The following codes identify payees that are exempt 
from backup withholding: 
1 - An organization exempt from tax under section 
501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under 
section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the 
requirements of section 401(f)(2) 
2 - The United States or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities 
3 - A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of 
the United States, or any of their political 
subdivisions, or instrumentalities 
4 - A foreign government or any of its political 
subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities 
5 - A corporation 

6 - A dealer in securities or commodities required to 
register in the United States, the District of 
Columbia, or a possession of the United States 
7 - A futures commission merchant registered with 
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
8 - A real estate investment trust 
9 - An entity registered at all times during the tax 
year under the Investment Company Act of 1940 
10- A common trust fund operated by a bank under 
section 584(a) 
11 - A financial institution 
12 - A middleman known in the investment 
community as a nominee or custodian 
13 - A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or 
described in section 4947. 

The following chart shows types of payments that 
may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart 
applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 
through 13. 

IF the payment is for. . . THEN the payment is exempt for. . 

Interest and dividend All exempt payees except for 7 
payments 
Broker transactions Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 

through 11 and all C corporations. 
S corporations must not enter an 
exempt payee code because they 
are exempt only for sales of 
noncovered securities acquired 
prior to 2012. 

Barter exchange Exempt payees 1 through 4 
transactions and 
patronage dividends 
Payments over $600    Generally, exempt payees 1 
required to be reported through 52 

and direct sales over 
$5,0001 

Payments made in Exempt payees 1 through 4 
settlement of payment 
card or third party 
network transactions 

1See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and 
its instructions. 
2However, the following payments made to a 
corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are 
not exempt from backup withholding:  medical and 
health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross 
proceeds paid to an attorney, and payments for 
services paid by a federal executive agency. 

Exemption from FATCA reporting code.  The 
following codes identify payees that are exempt 
from reporting under FATCA.  These codes apply to 
persons submitting this form for accounts 
maintained outside of the United States by certain 
foreign financial institutions.  Therefore, if you are 
only submitting this form for an account you hold in 
the United States, you may leave this field blank.  
Consult with the person requesting this form if you 
are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to 
these requirements. 

A - An organization exempt from tax under section 
501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined 
in section 7701(a)(37) 
B - The United States or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities 
C - A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of 
the United States, or any of their political 
subdivisions or instrumentalities 
D - A corporation the stock of which is regularly 
traded on one or more established securities 
markets, as described in Reg. section 1.1472-
1(c)(1)(i) 
E - A corporation that is a member of the same 
expanded affiliated group as a corporation 
described in Reg. section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i) 
F - A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative 
financial instruments (including notional principal 
contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is 
registered as such under the laws of the United 
States or any state 
G - A real estate investment trust 
H - A regulated investment company as defined in 
section 851 or an entity registered at all times 
during the tax year under the Investment Company 
Act of 1940 
I - A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a) 
J - A bank as defined in section 581 
K - A broker 
L - A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or 
described in section 4947(a)(1) 
M - A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan 
or section 457(g) plan 

Section 2 - Certification 

To establish to the paying agent that your TIN is 
correct, you are not subject to backup withholding, 
or you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign the 
certification on Form W-9.  You are being requested 
to sign by the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is 
shown in Part I should sign (when required). 

Real estate transactions. You must sign the 
certification.  You may cross out item 2 of the 
certification. 

Submission: 
Commonwealth Vendor Group 
Post Office Box 1971 
Richmond, VA 23218-1971 

3 



Mr. Lonzo Lester 
Page 2 
November 16, 2023 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1 

 

Any returned funds should be made through the Automated Clearing Housing (ACH).  Send 
your payment to Truist Bank, 301 Peachtree Street, Atlanta, GA 30308 (866-448-6394).  Routing #: 
061 000 104.  Wire Account #: 2011 41795.   ACH Account # 2011 41795 165099.   Additionally, send 
an email to Ms. Tonya Thomas, Senior Fiscal Analyst, at tonya.thomas@dhcd.virginia.gov, alerting her 
to the impending arrival of the payment.  In your e-mail to Ms. Thomas, be sure to identify the name of 
your assigned Community Development Specialist (CDS), the grant number, and the type of funds 
being returned (e.g., CDS Joan Smith, CDBG #19-19-90, Owner Occupied SR/Construction).  Contact 
your CDS if your locality cannot use the ACH. 

It has been a pleasure working with you. We appreciate your locality’s cooperation in 
completing this project. If you have any questions relating to this matter, please contact Stuart Burrill 
by e-mail at stuart.burrill@dhcd.virginia.gov or by phone at (276) 525-5010. 

Sincerely, 

Amanda Healy 
Associate Director 

c: Tracy Puckett, Russell County PSA 
Debbie Milton, Cumberland Plateau PDC 
Matt Boyd, Cumberland Plateau PDC 
Stuart Burrill, DHCD 
Kathi Boatright, DHCD 
Tonya Thomas, DHCD 
Dr. Melissa Mason, DHCD 

10-06/REV 10-22



 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1 

 

November 16, 2023 
Mr. Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
Russell County
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

RE:   Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 
Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase II  
ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL 
CLOSEOUT 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

The Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) has reviewed 
and accepted Russell County’s documents and have administratively and conditionally closed your 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG).  The effective date of this closeout is November 16, 
2023. 

Final closure of the grant will be conditioned upon the submission of the following 
documents: 

1. Acceptable Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 and 2024 financial audit reports through DHCD’s
Centralized Application and Management System (CAMS) and the resolution of any audit
findings presented.

All grantees that receive funding during a specific program year are required to submit one
(1) of the following financial documents:

1. Financial Statement prepared by the organization (does not require preparation by an
Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)),

2. Reviewed Financial Statement(s) prepared by an Independent CPA,
3. Financial Statement(s) that have been audited by an Independent CPA, or
4. 2 CRF 200 Subpart F Audit – Audited by an Independent CPA.

Grantees must upload the required financial document(s) into CAMS within nine (9) months
after the end of their fiscal year or thirty (30) days after its CPA-approved financial statement or 
audit has been accepted, whichever comes first.  The full DHCD audit policy, including an 
explanation of the specific document requirements, can be found online at:  
https://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/sites/default/files/Docx/audit-policy/dhcd-audit-policy.pdf.  

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight







Page 2 of 2 

The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on Monday, December 
11, 2023, adopted the following: 

NO-COST RURAL ADDITION RESOLUTION 
ROUTE 836 EXTENSION, CULBERSON LANE 

WHEREAS, the Lebanon Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation 
recommends that the street(s) referenced in this Board’s resolution be added to the 
secondary system of state highways as a no-cost rural addition pursuant to Section 33.2-
705 and Commonwealth Transportation Board policy, because the street(s) meets current 
minimum standards, the condition of the existing hard surface is serviceable, the street(s) 
has provided continuous public service since its establishment circa 1922 and currently 
serves at least three occupied residential dwellings; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lebanon Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation 
confirms that no Department funds are required to improve the street(s) described on the 
attached addition sketch and form AM-4.3 to meet current minimum design or maintenance 
standards of the Department; and,    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department 
of Transportation to add the street(s) described on the attached sketch and form AM-4.3 to 
the secondary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-705, Code of Virginia and the 
Rural Addition Policy of the Commonwealth Transportation Board of the Virginia 
Department of Transportation; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board guarantees a clear and unrestricted right of 
way, as described on the attached form AM-4.3, and any necessary easements for cuts, fills 
and drainage; and, 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Resident Engineer of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

Recorded Vote 
Moved by: Click or tap here to enter text. 
Seconded by: Click or tap here to enter text. 
Yeas: Click or tap here to enter text. 
Nays: Click or tap here to enter text. 

A Copy Teste: 

__________________________________ 
Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson,  

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Form AM 4.3

 Form AM 4.3                                                                                                                                                                                
(Rev 12/05/2023)                                                                                                                                                                                              

by Resolution of the governing body adopted 12/11/2023

In Russell County

ICR ID: 39365947
NONE

Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

CHANGE TYPE RTE NUM & 
STREET NAME

CHANGE 
DESCRIPTION

FROM TERMINI TO TERMINI LENGTH NUMBER OF 
LANES

RECORDAT
ION 

REFERENC
E

ROW 
WIDTH

Length Correction Rt. 58 - US 
HIGHWAY 58

Data Adjustment, 
Project by VDOT 

§33.2-326

RTE 836 E [B] RTE 701 [E] 0.10 0

Length Correction Rt. 58 - US 
HIGHWAY 58

Data Adjustment, 
Project by VDOT 

§33.2-326

RTE 836 W [D] RTE 836 E [B] 0.10 0

Addition Rt. 836 - 
CULBERSON 

LANE

Rural (CTB Policy 
No Cost) §33.2-705

0.02 MI S US 58 
ALT [A]

US 58 ALT [B] 0.02 2 PROJECT 
PLANS

50

Length Correction Rt. 836 - 
CULBERSON LN

Data Adjustment, 
Project by VDOT 

§33.2-326

0.12 MI SW US 58 
ALT [C]

0.02 MI SW US 58 
ALT [A]

0.10 0

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the governing body's resolution for changes to the 
secondary system of state highways.

A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):__________________________________________________________

Project/Subdivision:  ROUTE 836 NO-COST RURAL ADDITION

John.Bolling
Highlight
  Signed (County Official):



John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Text Box
A

John.Bolling
Text Box
B

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Text Box
C

John.Bolling
Text Box
D

John.Bolling
Text Box
E

John.Bolling
Text Box
836

John.Bolling
Text Box
836

John.Bolling
Text Box
836

John.Bolling
Image

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
58

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
ROUTE 701

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.02

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.10

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.10

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.10

John.Bolling
Text Box
VA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATIONBRISTOL DISTRICTLEBANON RESIDENCYRUSSELL COUNTY (083)EXTENSION OF ROUTE 836NO-COST RURAL ADDITION

John.Bolling
Text Box
SEGMENT A-B:  ROUTE 836 ADDITIONFrom 0.02 mi S Rte US 58 Alternate to Rte US 58 AlternateLength = 0.02 mile

John.Bolling
Text Box
SEGMENT C-A:  ROUTE 836 MILEAGE SPLITFrom 0.12 mi SW Rte US 58 Alternate to 0.02 mi SW Rte US 58 AlternateLength = 0.10 mile

John.Bolling
Text Box
SEGMENT D-B:  ROUTE US 58 ALT MILEAGE SPLITFrom Rte 836 W to Rte 836 ELength = 0.10 mile

John.Bolling
Text Box
SEGMENT D-B:  ROUTE US 58 ALT MILEAGE SPLITFrom Rte 836 E to Rte 701Length = 0.10 mile

John.Bolling
Text Box
FOR RIGHT OF WAY DETAILS SEE PROJECT PLANS FOR PROJECTS:0058-083-S199 & 6058-083-104, C501

John.Bolling
Text Box
ICR #39365947

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
ALT



 
 
 

 
 
 

December 4, 2023 
 
 
 

Mrs. Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, VA  24266 

 
Dear Mdme Chair: 
 
To participate in the additional state programs, we must meet the 
required maintenance of effort which includes the 2% salary 
increase for all fulltime employees.  This will take effect January 
2024. 
 
Due to the budget released on October 12, 2023, the required local 
effort increased to $9,218,102.  We are asking the Russell County 
Board of Supervisors to increase our funding in the amount of 
$116,785. 
 
We really appreciate your continued support. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kimberly M. Hooker, Ed.D. 
Division Superintendent 
 
 

 

School Board 
Members 

Cha i rman  
Bob  G ibs on  

Vice-Chairman 
Cynthia Compton 

 
Tim Ball 

W a y n e  B o s t i c  

L i n d a  G a r r e t t  

Kip Parsons 

A l e x  Z a c h w i e j a  

Russell County Public Schools 
Kimberly M. Hooker, Ed. D. 

Division Superintendent 
Office 276.889.6500 Fax 276.889.6508 

Post Office Box 8 84 Dr. Lorraine C. Turner Drive Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Gmai Lonzo Lester <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us> 

Fw: FY 2024 Final Revised Local Budget Allocations - Russell 167 
1 message 

Greer, Kristy (VOSS) <Kristy.Greer@dss.virginia.gov> 
To: "Lester, Lonzo" <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us> 
Cc: "Brunty, Patrick (VDSS)" <patrick.brunty@dss.virginia.gov> 

Good afternoon, 

Mon, Dec 4, 2023 at 12:53 PM 

Here is the revised final FY2024 budget letter dated October 2023. This has 
the revisions for BL# 855 and 804 increases. We did return $23,000 of BL# 
851 funds based on our projected calculations for benefits employee overtime. 

My calculations for the local match and cost for one part-time employee COLA 
increase in December 2023 based on 7 months: 

$5,345.92 

From: Waller, Joann (VDSS) <Joann.Waller@dss.virginia.gov> 
Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 3:55 PM 
To: Greer, Kristy (VDSS) <Kristy.Greer@dss.virginia.gov>; Brunty, Patrick (VDSS) <patrick.brunty@dss.virginia. 
gov> 
Cc: Larsen, Deborah (VDSS) <deborah.larsen@dss.virginia.gov>; Avery, Sandra (VDSS) 

<Sandra.Avery@dss.virginia.gov> 
Subject: FY 2024 Final Revised Local Budget Allocations - Russell 167 

Please find attached a copy of the Revised Final FY 2024 Local Budget Letter along with the following: 

• 2024 LASER Allocations - Revised BL 849 & BL 855 
• 2024 BL 855 Allocations - Revised 

If you have any questions, please contact Sandra Avery or Kyle Steider in the Budget Office. 

Sandra Avery (804) 726-7251 or sandra.avery@dss.virginia.gov 
Kyle Steider (804) 726-7253 or kyle.steider@dss.virginia.gov 

Joann Waller 
Executive Assistant, Division of Finance 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight





Steve Breeding
Highlight





Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 
 
 

 

November 26, 2023 
 
 

To:  Public Library Directors 
 
From:  Paranita S. Carpenter 
  (804) 692-3993 
  paranita.carpenter@lva.virginia.gov 
 
RE:  Revised State Grant-In-Aid FY2024 
 
Attached is a copy of your revised approved FY2024 Application for State Aid Grant for the Russell County Public 
Library in the amount of $128,394.00 signed by Sandra G. Treadway, Librarian of Virginia. Please communicate 
receipt of this grant and its importance to local library services to the appropriate governing bodies, individuals, 
organizations, and media in your area. 
 
You will receive four (4) quarterly payments in the amounts listed below from the Department of Accounts according 
to the following schedule: 
 

Month of 
Payment 

EDI Deposit to 
Locality* 

Deadline for 
Checks 

to Arrive at 
Locality** 

July 2023 July 13, 2023 July 20, 2023 
October 2023 October 10, 2023 October 17, 2023 
January 2024 January 11, 2024 January 18, 2024 
April 2024 April 11, 2024 April 18, 2024 

 
*   EDI (Electronic Data Interchange) deposits to designated banks. 

** Paper checks (non-EDI) should be received. 
 

First Quarter Payment $27,353.00 
Second Quarter Payment $33,680.33 
Third Quarter Payment $33,680.33 
Fourth Quarter Payment $33,680.34 

 
Should this payment schedule change, we will notify you as quickly as possible. 
 
The Instructions for Expenditure of State Aid Grants are available on the Infocenter. If you have any questions, please 
contact Kim Armentrout at (804) 692-3601 or kim.armentrout@lva.virginia.gov. If you do not receive your check or 
EDI deposit by the scheduled date(s), please contact me immediately. 
 
cc: Sandra G. Treadway

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Gmai Lonzo Lester <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us> 

VDEM announces Emergency Management Performance Grant Funding Allocations 
for Fiscal Year 2023 
1 message 

VDEM Grants Office <vdemgrants@vdem.virginia.gov> 
Reply-To: vdemgrants@vdem.virginia.gov 

Wed, Nov 15, 2023 at 2:03 PM 

To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Virginia Department of 
Emergency Management 
NEWS RELEASE 

VDEM announces Emergency Management 
Performance Grant Funding Allocations for 
Fiscal Year 2023 

Funding gives $2,684,631 million to support local emergency management efforts 
November 15, 2023 

RICHMOND, VA - The Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM), 
announced today the awarding of over $2.6 million in grant funding for the Emergency 
Management Performance Grant Program (EMPG). The EMPG program is a federally 
funded , state distributed, grant program. The grant focuses on funding planning, 
operations, equipment acquisitions, trainings, exercises, and construction and renovation 

efforts at the local government level. 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



The EMPG program provides resources to assist local governments in preparing for all 
hazards. Through the grant program, the Federal government provides coordination, 
guidance, and assistance to support a comprehensive emergency preparedness system. 

"Successful emergency management requires an all-hazards approach. This grant 
provides us with the resources we need to build and sustain our core capabilities across 
the five mission areas: prevention, protection, mitigation, response and recovery," said 
State Coordinator of Emergency Management Shawn Talmadge. 

Grant funding for the program is available to cities, counties and those towns recognized 
as emergency management jurisdictions under Title 44 of the Code of Virginia. The 
following EMPG grant allocations have been awarded for FY2023: 

FY2023 Emergency Management Performance Grant 

Funding Allocations 

Accomack County $7,500 

Albermarle County $25,452 

Alexandria City of $60,904 

Alleghany County $7,500 

Amelia County $7,500 

Amherst County $14,911 

Appomattox County $7,500 

Arlington County $72,527 

Augusta County $14,882 

Bath County $7,500 

Bedford County $13,304 

Bland County $7,500 

Botetourt County $7,500 

Bristol City of $15,500 

Brunswick County $7,500 

Buchanan County $7,500 

Buckingham County $7,500 

Buena Vista City of $7,500 



Campbell County $13,805 

Caroline County $12,120 

Carroll County $7,500 

Charles City County $14,034 

Charlotte County $7,500 

Charlottesville City of $7,500 

Chesapeake City of $71 ,284 

Chesterfield County $76,409 

Chincoteague, Town of $7,500 

Christiansburg, Town of $7,500 

Clarke County $7,500 

Colonial Heights City of $7,500 

Covington City of $9,346 

Craig County $7,500 

Culpeper County $10,751 

Cumberland County $7,500 

Danville City of $27,013 

Dickenson County $7,500 

Dinwiddie County $7,500 

Emporia City of $10,285 

Essex County $13,316 

Fairfax City of $7,500 

Fairfax County $109,897 

Falls Church City $7,500 

Farmville, Town of $12,180 

Fauquier County $17,725 



Floyd County $7,500 

Fluvanna County $7,500 

Franklin City of $16,595 

Franklin County $36,498 

Fredericksburg County $10,680 

Fredrick County $16,297 

Galax City of $7,500 

Giles County $7,500 

Gloucester County $13,644 

Goochland County $16,904 

Grayson County $7,500 

Greene County $7,500 

Greensville County $7,500 

Halifax County $12,196 

Hampton City of $70,740 

Hanover County $22,997 

Harrisonburg City of $7,500 

Henrico County $67,504 

Henry County $26,164 

Highland County $7,500 

Hopewell City of $42,959 

Isle of Wight County $7,500 

James City County $39,978 

King and Queen County $7,500 

King George County $12,820 

King William County $7,500 



Lancaster County $7,500 

Lee County $7,500 

Lexington City of $7,500 

Loudoun County $73,546 

Louisa County $17,607 

Lunenburg County $7,500 

Lynchburg City $23,423 

Madison County $7,500 

Manassas City $7,500 

Manassas Park City $7,500 

Martinsville City of $7,500 

Mathews County $7,500 

Mecklenburg County $7,500 

Middlesex County $7,500 

Montgomery County $14,757 

Nelson County $7,500 

New Kent County $27,932 

Newport News City of $93,035 

Norfolk City of $113,617 

Northampton County $7,500 

Northumberland County $7,500 

Norton City of $7,500 

Nottoway County $7,500 

Orange County $7,900 

Page County $7,500 

Patrick County $7,500 



Petersburg City of $10,675 

Pittsylvania County $22,803 

Poquoson City of $7,500 

Portsmouth City of $57,992 

Powhatan County $7,500 

Prince Edward County $9,436 

Prince George County $25,231 

Prince William County $59,819 

Pulaski County $16,904 

Radford City of $7,500 

Rappahannock County $7,500 

Richmond City of $85,630 

Richmond County $7,500 

Roanoke City of $53,387 

Roanoke County $21,282 

Rockbridge County $7,500 

Rockingham County $19,022 

Russell County $7,500 

Salem City of $13,483 

Scott County $13,810 

Shenandoah County $23,509 

Smyth County $7,500 

South Boston, Town of $7,500 

Southampton County $7,500 

Spotsylvania County $40,579 

Stafford County $49,164 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Staunton City of $7,500 

Suffolk City of $21 ,781 

Surry County $7,500 

Sussex County $7,500 

Tazewell County $7,500 

Vinton.Town of $7,500 

Virginia Beach City of $102,914 

Warren County $7,500 

Washington County $9,015 

Waynesboro City of $7,500 

Westmoreland County $7,500 

West Point, Town of $7,500 

Williamsburg City of $7,500 

Winchester City of $8,905 

Wise County $7,500 

Wythe County $13,017 

York County $50,335 

Total $2,684,631 

Grant allocation letters will be made available within the next week. For more information 
about these programs, please contact Catherine Lee - Preparedness Grants Manager 
Programs at Catherine.Lee@vdem.virginia.gov or visit the VDEM Grants webpage 
at httRs://www.vaemergency..,_gov/divisions/finance/grants. To sign up for grant 

announcements and notifications, please §ign-uR here. 

Stay Connected with Virginia Department of Emergency Management: 

SUBSCRIBER SERVICES: 
Manage SubscriRtions I Unsubscribe All I HelR 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1   District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

  

  

 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 
Due to Dry Weather Conditions 

 
WHEREAS, LACK OF PRECIPITATION IN THE COUNTY, AS CONFIRMED BY THE 

NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE AT MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE, AND UNSEASONABLY HIGH 
TEMPERATURES HAVE CAUSED GRASSLANDS AND WOODLANDS TO BE EXTREMELY DRY 
CAUSING COUNTY FIRES AND A SEVERE INCREASE IN FIRE RISK THROUGHOUT RUSSELL 
COUNTY; 

WHEREAS, SIGNIFICANT ACREAGE OF PROPERTY IN THE REGION AND THE COUNTY 
HAVE BEEN AFFECTED BY FOREST FIRES WITHIN THE PAST SEVERAL DAYS OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; 

WHEREAS, UNCONTROLLED, OPEN FIRES POSE A SERIOUS THREAT TO LIFE AND 
PROPERTY WHILE THE CURRENT DRY CONDITIONS EXIST; AND 

WHEREAS, THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, AFTER CONSULTATION 
WITH VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY, COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENTS, AND THE 
GOVERNOR OF VIRGINIA DECLARATION OF A “STATE OF EMERGENCY” RECOMMENDED 
THAT THE COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA, AND SUBJECT TO CONFIRMATION BY THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, DECLARE AN EMERGENCY PROHIBITION AGAINST ANY 
PERSON SETTING FIRE, OR PROCURING ANOTHER PERSON TO SET FIRE, TO ANY 
WOODS, BRUSH, LOGS, LEAVES, GRASS, DEBRIS, OR OTHER FLAMMABLE MATERIAL 
WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF RUSSELL COUNTY BOTH ON ANY PUBLIC AS WELL AS ON 
ANY PRIVATE PROPERTY, UNTIL THIS DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY PROHIBITION IS 
DECLARED ENDED BY OFFICIAL ACT OF THE COUNTY; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA, DOES HEREBY ACCEPT THE 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND COUNTY FIRE 
DEPARTMENTS TO ISSUE A DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY DUE TO DRY WEATHER 
CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 44-146.21 AND 15.2-922.1 OF THE CODE OF 
VIRGINIA AND HEREBY ESTABLISHES A BAN ON OPEN-AIR BURNING FOR THE COUNTY 
OF RUSSELL UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE AND PUTTING ON ALERT THE RESPONSE AND 
RECOVERY PROGRAMS OF ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLANS 
SHOULD ACTIVATION BE WARRANTED. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS BAN IS EFFECTIVE AT 12:00 A.M., NOVEMBER 
13, 2023, AND THAT IT SHALL REMAIN IN EFFECT UNTIL SUCH BAN IS ENDED BY ACTION 
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. 

SO, DECLARED ON THIS THE 13th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023. 

 

 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

THE FOREGOING DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY WAS DULY CONFIRMED BY 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF RUSSELL, 
VIRGINIA, ADOPTED AT ITS REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 13, 
2023, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 

_____________________________ 

LONZO LESTER, MBA, CPC, VCO                                                                                             
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR                                                                                               
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR 

 

Recorded Vote      Copy Teste: 

Moved By:  ________________________ 

Seconded By:  ______________________ 

Yeas:  _______                                         

Nays:                                         Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight































Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



























Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight







Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1   District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

  

  

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Russell County Board of 

Supervisors held on December 11, 2023, on a motion by ___________, 
seconded by ______________, the following resolution was adopted by a vote 
of ___ yeas and ___ nays, this board did hereby approve the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 Coal Road Plan; 

 
WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors desires to submit 

this application for an allocation of funds up to $100,000 from the County’s Coal 
Severance Tax Fund (Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024) for road repairs on a coal haul 
road, and; 

 
WHEREAS, $100,000 of these funds will fund the Rte. 615 (Gravel Lick 
Road) repairs / improvements on segments between from Rte. 615 / Rte. 

616 intersection to Rte. 615 / Rte. 621 intersection, and; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of 

the Russell County, hereby commits to fund the work utilizing the County’s Coal 
Road Funds approved by the Coal Road Committee; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator is authorized 

to execute all agreements and/or addendums for any approved projects with the 
Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 
ADOPTED this 11th day of December 2023. 

 
       A COPY ATTEST 
  
 
       _____________________ 

        Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  



Previous Total

0 $100,000

$100,000

$0

Russell County

Coal Road Plan             
FY 2023/2024

Russell County (083)

Description

Rte. 615 - GRAVEL LICK ROAD, WIDEN & RECONSTRUCT

$100,000

CNPE RW

$100,000 $100,000

Budget Projected

 Rte. 615   Rte. 615 / Rte. 616 Intersection to Rte. 615 / Rte. 621 Intersection

Balance:

Total Estimate: Estimate: $0 $0



Steve Breeding
Highlight





 

 
 

 
ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS   

T&L    100 Fifth Street, Suite 400    Bristol, Tennessee 37620     tel: 423.989.9491    fax: 423.989.9010    www.T-L.com 

December 5, 2023 
 
Mr. Lonzo Lester  
County Administrator  
Russell County, Virginia  
137 Highland Drive, Suite A 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 -7145 
(Via email) 
 
Re: Dante ATV Route Letter Report 
 T&L Project #717837 

 
Dear Mr. Lester:  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to be considered for a letter report to support all-terrain vehicle traffic in 
the Dante Community of Russell County, Virginia.   
 
Thompson & Litton, Inc (T&L) contacted the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) and 
understands they require certain analysis be performed by a properly licensed professional engineer to 
support all-terrain vehicle traffic in the Dante Community of Russell County, Virginia.   
 
T&L proposes to make a site visit, and consider crash data, land use, and traffic generators to perform its 
analysis and prepare the letter report needed by VDOT. Based on our interaction with VDOT, no other 
services or deliverables of the engineer are required.  
 
To perform the described work, T&L proposes a lump sum fee of $4,990 (FOUR THOUSAND NINE 
HUNDRED AND NINETY DOLLARS) and a 45-day schedule from execution of a signed contract.  
 
If T&L’s proposal is acceptable, we will prepare an agreement that captures what has been described in 
this proposal letter for signature. Do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need any 
additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Robert Cornett 
Senior Project Manager 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS   

T&L    103 East Main Street    P.O. Box 1307    Wise, Virginia 24293    tel: 276.328.2161    fax: 276.328.1738    www.T-L.com 

T&L Project No. 017837 

 

AGREEMENT TO ENGAGE THE SERVICES OF THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. 

AS A CONSULTANT AND ADVISOR.  FEE IS A LUMP SUM. 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into at Wise, Virginia on the 11th day of December 2023, between Russell 

County Board of Supervisors whose address is 137 Highland Drive, Suite B, Lebanon, Virginia 24266, 

hereinafter called "Client", and Thompson & Litton, Inc., a Virginia Corporation, whose address is 103 East 

Main Street, P.O. Box 1307, Wise, Virginia 24293, hereinafter called “Thompson & Litton”, is as follows:   

 

The Client and Thompson & Litton, for mutual considerations and premises hereinafter set forth, agree as 

follows: 

 

A. Thompson & Litton agrees to perform certain consulting and advisor services for the Client related to 

a traffic analysis per the attached proposal letter dated December 5, 2023. 

 

B. Client agrees to pay Thompson & Litton as compensation for consultant engineering services a lump 

sum fee of $4,990.00 (Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety dollars and no/100).  

 

C. Client agrees to make prompt monthly payments in response to Thompson & Litton's billing. 

 

D. Thompson & Litton expects to start it services promptly after the receipt of Client’s acceptance of this 

Agreement and to substantially complete its services within thirty (45) days.  

 

E. The proposed schedule and fee are predicated on a notice to proceed being issued 90 days from the 

date shown. 

 

F. Client and Thompson & Litton agree, in order to assure a clear understanding of all matters related to 

their mutual responsibilities, that the STANDARD PROVISIONS attached to this Agreement hereof are 

also a part of this Agreement.  Client and Thompson & Litton agree that each has read, understands, 

and accepts such additional terms and conditions to this Agreement as set forth in the STANDARD 

PROVISIONS. 

 

THOMPSON & LITTON, INC.      

 

BY:     DATE:        

          Gregory H. Hurst, PE 

TITLE:  President   ATTEST:       

 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

BY:     DATE:        

 

TITLE:         ATTEST:       

angela_moore
Text Box
December 11, 2023



 
Standard Provisions 

Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 
Page 1 of 3 

 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 
 

1. Thompson & Litton Agrees: 
A. To perform professional services described in the 

Agreement, which include normal engineering and 
architectural engineering services and normal 
professional services incidental thereto. 

B. To consult with Client to determine his requirements 
and review available data. 

C. To advise Client as to the necessity of his providing or 
obtaining from others data or services of type not 
included in the services of Thompson & Litton. 

2. The Client Agrees: 
A. To designate a person to act with authority on his behalf 

in respect to all aspects of the project, shall examine 
and respond promptly to Thompson & Litton’s 
submissions, and shall give prompt written notice to 
Thompson & Litton whenever he observes or otherwise 
becomes aware of any defect in the project or in 
Thompson & Litton’s services. 

B. To guarantee access to and make all provisions for 
Thompson & Litton to enter upon public and private 
property. 

C. To provide such legal, accounting, special consultants, 
independent cost estimates, and insurance counseling 
services as may be required and to furnish Thompson & 
Litton data by or services of others as necessary, of 
types not included in the services of Thompson & Litton, 
all of which Thompson & Litton may rely upon in 
performing his services. 

D. To provide full information regarding his requirements 
for the project and the services of Thompson & Litton. 

E. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and not 
withstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to 
limit the total liability, in the aggregate, of Thompson & 
Litton and Thompson & Litton’s officers, directors, 
employees, agents, or subconsultants, or any of them, 
to the total compensation received by Thompson & 
Litton under this Agreement, or the total amount of 
$50,000, whichever is greater. 

F. That Thompson & Litton shall not be responsible for the 
acts or omissions of any contractor, and/or 
subcontractor, or any of the contractor(s)’ agents, or 
employees or any other person except his own 
employees and agents with regard to the project or any 
of the work or management of the project. 

3. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
A. Reuse of Documents and Electronic Files. 

In accepting and utilizing any drawings or other data 
generated and provided by Thompson & Litton, 
including all documents on any form of electronic 
media, the Client covenants and agrees that all such 
drawings and data are instruments of service of 
Thompson & Litton, who shall be deemed the author of 
the drawings and data, and shall retain all common law, 
statutory law and other rights, including copyrights. The 
electronic files submitted by Thompson & Litton to the 

Client are submitted for an acceptance period of 30 
days. Any defects the Client discovers during this period 
will be reported to Thompson & Litton and will be 
corrected as part of Thompson & Litton’s scope of 
services of this Agreement. Correction of defects 
detected and reported after the acceptance period are 
not part of the scope of services of this Agreement. The 
client further agrees not to use these drawings and 
data, in whole or in part, for any purpose or project 
other than the project which is the subject of this 
Agreement. The Client agrees to waive all claims against 
Thompson & Litton resulting in any way from any 
unauthorized changes or reuse of the drawings and data 
for any other project by anyone other than Thompson & 
Litton. In addition, the Client agrees, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold 
Thompson & Litton harmless from any damage, liability 
or cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs 
of defense, arising from any changes made by anyone 
other than Thompson & Litton or from any reuse of the 
drawings and data without the prior written consent of 
Thompson & Litton. Under no circumstances shall 
transfer of the drawings and other instruments of 
service on electronic media for use by the Client be 
deemed a sale by Thompson & Litton, and Thompson & 
Litton makes no warranties, either express or implied, of 
merchantability and fitness for any particular purpose. 

B. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost. 
Since Thompson & Litton has no control over the cost of 
labor, materials, or equipment or over contractor(s), or 
operator(s), methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding, management practices, or market 
conditions, his opinions of probable costs when 
provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his 
experience and qualifications and represent his best 
judgment as a design professional familiar with the 
construction industry, but Thompson & Litton cannot 
and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or the 
actual construction costs will not vary from opinions of 
probable cost prepared by him. If Client wishes greater 
assurance as to the construction costs, he shall employ 
an independent cost estimator. Thompson & Litton’s 
services to modify the project to bring the cost within 
any limitation established by Client will be considered 
services beyond the scope of Agreement and paid for as 
such by the Client. 

C. Late Payment. 
1. If Client fails to make any payment due Thompson & 

Litton for services and expenses within sixty (60) days 
after receipt of Thompson & Litton’s bill, thereafter, 
the amounts due Thompson & Litton shall include a 
charge at the rate established on Thompson & 
Litton’s Schedule of Reimbursable Expenses from said 
sixtieth day; and in addition Thompson & Litton may 
after giving seven day’s written notice to Client, 



Standard Provisions 
Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 

Page 2 of 3 

suspend services under this Agreement until Client 
has paid in-full all amounts due for services and 
expenses, including reasonable fees incurred with 
relation to collection therefore. 

2. Client further agrees to authorize Thompson & Litton 
and our affiliates, as well as their affiliates which 
include debt collectors, to contact you at any 
telephone number associated with your account, 
including wireless telephone numbers, which could 
result in charges to Client. Methods of contact include 
but are not limited to the use of pre-recorded 
voicemail messages, artificial voicemail messages, 
automatic telephone dialing systems, predictive 
telephone dialing systems, automated SMS text 
message reminders, and facsimile as applicable. 

D. Dispute Resolution. 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the 
design or construction of the project or following the 
completion of the project, the Client and Thompson & 
Litton agree that all disputes between them arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement shall be submitted to 
nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise. The Client and Thompson & Litton further 
agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and 
consultants retained for the project and to require all 
independent contractors and consultants also to include 
a similar mediation provision in all agreements with 
subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers or fabricators 
so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the 
primary method for dispute resolution between the 
parties to those agreement. 

E. Arbitration. 
In the event the parties to this Agreement are unable to 
reach a settlement of any dispute arising out of the 
services under this Agreement, in accordance with 
Paragraph D. (Dispute Resolution), then such disputes 
shall be settled by binding arbitration by an arbitrator to 
be mutually agreed upon by the parties and shall 
proceed in accordance with the rules of the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. If the parties cannot agree on a 
single arbitrator, then the arbitrator(s) shall be selected 
in accordance with the above referenced rules. 

F. Termination. 
Either the Client or Thompson & Litton may terminate 
this Agreement at any time with or without cause upon 
giving the other party fourteen (14) calendar days prior 
written notice. The Client shall within thirty (30) 
calendar days of termination, pay Thompson & Litton 
for all services rendered and all costs incurred up to the 
date of termination, in accordance with the 
compensation provisions of this contract. The Client 
shall reimburse Thompson & Litton for all expenses 
reasonably incurred by Thompson & Litton in 
connection with termination of this Agreement, 
including but not limited to demobilization, 

reassignment of personnel, and space and equipment 
costs. 

G. Successors and Assigns. 
Client and Thompson & Litton each binds himself and 
his partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement, neither Client nor Thompson & Litton 
shall assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other. 
Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any 
personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of 
any public body, which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits 
hereunder to anyone other than Client and Thompson & 
Litton. 

H. Jobsite Safety. 
Neither the professional activities of Thompson & 
Litton, nor the presence of Thompson & Litton or its 
employees and subconsultants at a construction site, 
shall relieve the General Contractor and any other entity 
of their obligations, duties and responsibilities including, 
but not limited to, construction means, methods, 
sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for 
performing, superintending or coordinating all portions 
of the work of construction in accordance with the 
contract documents and any health or safety 
precautions required by any regulatory agencies. 
Thompson & Litton and its personnel have no authority 
to exercise any control over any construction contractor 
or other entity or their employees in connection with 
their work or any health or safety precautions. The 
Client agrees that the General Contractor is solely 
responsible for jobsite safety and warrants that this 
intent shall be made evident in the Client’s agreement 
with the General Contractor. The Client also agrees that 
the Client, Thompson & Litton and Thompson & Litton’s 
consultants shall be indemnified and shall be made 
additional insured under the General Contractor’s 
general liability insurance policy. 

I. Environmental and Health Hazards. 
It is acknowledged by both parties that, unless 
otherwise specifically designated in this Agreement, 
Thompson & Litton’s scope of services does not include 
any services related to asbestos or hazardous or toxic 
materials. In the event Thompson & Litton or any other 
party encounters asbestos or hazardous or toxic 
materials at the jobsite, or should it become known in 
any way that such materials may be present at the 
jobsite or any adjacent areas that may affect the 
performance of Thompson & Litton’s services, 
Thompson & Litton may, at its option and without 
liability for consequential or any other damages, 
suspend performance of services on the project until 
the Client retains appropriate specialist consultants or 
contractors to identify, abate and/or remove the 
asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials, and warrant 



Standard Provisions 
Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 

Page 3 of 3 

the jobsite is in full compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. The Client agrees, notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless 
Thompson & Litton, his or her officers, partners, 
employees, agents and consultants from and against 
any and all claims, suits, demands, liabilities, losses, or 
costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense 
costs, resulting or accruing to any and all persons, firms, 
or any other legal entity, caused by, arising out of or in 
any way connected with the detection, presence, 
handling, removal, abatement, or disposal of any 
asbestos or hazardous or toxic substances, products or 
materials that exist on, about or adjacent to the jobsite, 
whether liability arises under breach of contract or 
warrant, tort, including negligence, strict liability or 
statutory liability or any other cause of action. 

J. The financial arrangements set forth in this Agreement 
are agreed to on the basis of prompt payment of 
Thompson & Litton’s bills and orderly and continuous 
progress of the project. If there are protracted delays 
for reasons beyond Thompson & Litton’s control, Client 
and Thompson & Litton agree to renegotiate the basis 
of Thompson & Litton’s compensation in order to take 
into consideration changes in price indices and pay scale 
applicable to the period when Thompson & Litton’s 
services are in fact being rendered. 

K. This Agreement and these Standard Provisions 
represent the entire understanding between Client and 
Thompson & Litton in respect to the project and may 
only be modified in writing signed by both Client and 
Thompson & Litton. 

L. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the 
principal place of business of Thompson & Litton. 

M. Special Services of Thompson & Litton are defined as 
any services not included in the scope of Thompson & 
Litton’s services set forth in the Agreement. Such 
services, if desired and as requested by Client, shall be 
supplied by Thompson & Litton according to the 
guidelines set forth in the latest edition (current) of 
A.S.C.E. Manual 45. Unless otherwise specifically 
designated, scope of Thompson & Litton’s services shall 
not include core borings, probings and subsurface 
investigations, hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests 
and inspections of samples, materials and equipment, 
appropriate professional interpretation of all the 
foregoing, property descriptions, zoning and deed 
restrictions, or any other special services or 
consultations not covered in Paragraph A of the 
Agreement. 

N. If scope, which includes time, of the project or 
Thompson & Litton’s work is changed materially, 
Thompson & Litton’s compensation shall be subject to 
renegotiation. 

O. This Agreement is not intended to be for the benefit of 
any person or entity; and the parties hereto shall not be 
liable or responsible to any such nonparty by reason of 

this Agreement or any acts or omissions arising out of 
this Agreement, or any breach thereof. 

P. Thompson & Litton agrees to comply with Executive 
Order 11246, as amended, Section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the 
Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 
1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. 4212, and their 
implementing regulations at 41 CFR Chapter 60-741.5(a) 
and 41 CFR Chapter 600-300.5(a). These regulations 
prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals on 
the basis of disability or protected veteran status and 
requires affirmative action by Thompson & Litton to 
employ and advance in employment qualified 
individuals with disabilities and qualified protected 
veterans. 












































































































	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 12/11/23      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	November 13 2023 Minutes.pdf
	APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	Presentations
	APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 02, 2023 MINUTES
	APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES
	CATHERINE PRATT AND JASON GULLET RE-APPOINTED TO THE DANTE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD
	GREG STOOTS APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	JIM EATON RE-APPOINTED TO THE CPEDC
	Citizen’ Comment
	APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL TURKEY DONATIONS
	APPROVAL OF A BURN BAN RESOLUTION FOR RUSSELL COUNTY
	APPROVAL OF GENERAL REGISTRAR AND ELECTORAL BOARD SALARIES FOR 2023/2024
	APPROVAL OF A VDEM PSAP STAFFING RECOGNITION GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,000
	APPROVAL OF A $5000 VA911- FY24 DATA MAIN. & DATA TRANSFER GRANT
	APPROVAL OF A VDOT SPEED STUDY FOR RTE. 932, LYNN SPRING ROAD
	APPROVAL OF THE RC COURTHOUSE SKANSKA PROJECT MGMT SERVICES AGREEMENT
	APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR A HUMAN RESOURCE & PAYROLL POSITION FOR THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE
	APPROVAL OF A DEQ LITTER PREVENTION & RECYCLING PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,440
	NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENT PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,156.81
	APPROVAL OF THE RC LANDFILL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - TRC ENGINEERS, INC
	APPROVAL TO SET THE NEXT BOARD MEETING FOR DECEMBER 11, 2023 AT 6:00 PM

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/11/23         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/11/23         6:00 PM
	REPORTS
	1. VACo Preliminary Legislative Program 2024…..…………………………………..C-1
	2. VDOT November 2023 Report…………………………………………………………C-2
	REQUESTS
	3. RC General Election – Abstract of Votes – November 7, 2023..………………...C-3
	4. RC BOS & RC IDA Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Performance                            Agreement (TROF) - $146,000…………………………………………………………C-4
	5. DHCD Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 (Belfast Waterline                    Extension, Phase II) Administrative & Conditional Closeout……………………C-5
	6. VDOT Dante Depot Project – Certificate of Substantial Completion…………...C-6
	7. VDOT No-Cost Rural Addition Resolution Rte. 836 Extension -                                       Culberson Lane…………………………………………………………………………..C-7
	8. RC School Board Reversion Funds Appropriation & Reallocation                             concerning the 2% Employee Salary by the General Assembly…...…………...C-8
	9. RC DSS Board Appropriation of Funds concerning the 2% Employee                                Salary by the General Assembly……………………………………………………...C-9
	10. DCJS Law Enforcement Equipment Grant - $542,000 ($61,000 Increase)…….C-10
	11. RC Sheriff, Lebanon & Honaker Police “Shop With A Cop” Donation………...C-11
	12. Library of Virginia Revised State Grant-In-Aid FY 2024 - $128,394…………….C-12
	13. VDEM Emergency Management Performance Grant - $7,500…………………...C-13
	14. RC Emergency Burn Ban Resolution Cancellation………………………….…….C-14
	15. Potesta Master Agreement for Engineers & Environmental Services                              Contract Six-Month Extension………………………………………………………...C-15
	16. VDH & RC BOS Service Agreement – RC Health Department…………………...C-16
	17. RC Operational Medical Director (OMD) Contract for Services………………....C-17
	18. VDOT Resolution – Russell County Coal Haul Road Plan – Rte. 615 Gravel                          Lick Road Improvements - $100,000…………………………………………………C-18
	19. RC Planning Commission – CL Dale Construction Review……………………...C-19
	20. Honaker & Castlewood Canneries Closure Date…………………………………..C-20
	21. County December Holiday Payroll & Schedule….………………………………...C-21
	22.  RC BOS January 2024 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………C-22
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):


	Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification: 
	Form W9 Revised December 2017 Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W9 FormRow1: 
	SSN_or_EIN: Off
	SSN: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	7: 
	8: 
	6: 

	DUNS: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	7: 
	8: 
	6: 

	LEGAL_NAME: 
	BUSINESS_NAME: 
	ENTITY_TYPE: Off
	ENTITY_CLASSIFICATION: Off
	EXEMPT_PAYEE_CODE: 
	EXEMPT_PAYEE_CODE_FROM_BACKUP_WITHHOLDING: 
	EXEMPTION_FATCA: 
	LEGAL_ADDRESS_1: 
	LEGAL_ADDRESS_2: 
	LEGAL_ADDRESS_CITY: 
	LEGAL_ADDRESS_STATE: 
	LEGAL_ADDRESS_ZIP: 
	CONTACT_NAME: 
	CONTACT_EMAIL: 
	CONTACT_BUSINESS_PHONE: 
	REMIT_ADDRESS_1: 
	REMIT_ADDRESS_2: 
	CONTACT_FAX: 
	CONTACT_MOBILE_PHONE: 
	CONTACT_ALTERNATE_PHONE: 
	Form W9 Revised December 2017 Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W9 FormRow2: 
	Form W9 Revised December 2017 Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W9 FormRow3: 
	REMIT_ADDRESS_CITY: 
	REMIT_ADDRESS_STATE: 
	REMIT_ADDRESS_ZIP: 
	PRINTED_NAME: 
	Form W9 Revised December 2017 Commonwealth of Virginia Substitute W9 FormRow4: 
	Authorized US Signature: 
	DATE: 
	COMPANY_TYPE: Off
	All exempt payees except for 7: 
	Broker transactions: 
	Exempt payees 1 through 4: 
	Generally exempt payees 1 through 52: 
	Exempt payees 1 through 4_2: 


